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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of LOLC Life Assurance Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of LOLC Life Assurance Limited (the Company) which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the statement of income, statement of

comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2024, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards (SLAuSs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (“CA Sri Lanka Code of
Ethics”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the CA Sri Lanka Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual report for the year ended 31 December 2024, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual report is expected to be made available to us after
the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

C S Manoharan FCA, T U Jayasinghe FCA, M D B Boyagoda FCA, H A C H Gunarathne FCA, M P M T Gunasekara FCA, N R Gunasekera FCA, M S
J Henry FCA, M M R Hilmy FCA, H P V Lakdeva FCA, KM D R P Manatunga ACA, M M M Manzeer FCA, L A C Tillekeratne ACA,
D CAJ Yapa ACA

Regd. Office: P.O. Box 918, 100 Braybrooke Place, Colombo 02, Sri Lanka. Reg. No.: w/4179
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of LOLC Life Assurance Limited (Contd)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (Contd)
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SLAuSs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SLAuSs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of LOLC Life Assurance Limited (Contd)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (Contd)
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Contd)

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken
to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 163 (2) of the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, we have obtained all the information
and explanations that were required for the audit and, as far as appears from our examination, proper
accounting records have been kept by the Company.

As required by Section 47(2) of the Regulation of Insurance Industry Act, No 43 of 2000, as far as appears
from our examination, the accounting records of the Company have been maintained in the manner
required by the rules issued by Insurance Regulatory Commission of Sri Lanka, so as to clearly indicate the
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company.

Dealo:ti, fc.gws_

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
COLOMBO

30 April 2025



LOLC Life Assurance Limited
Statement of financial position
As at 315l Decermnber 2024

Assels

Property and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Intangihle assets

Deferred tax assets

Fquity Invesment
Ineestment securities
Paolicyholder and other Ioans
Reinsurance receivables
Premiums receivable
Amounts due from related parties
Other assets

Cash and bank balances

Total assets

Equity and Liabilities

Equity

Stated capital

Retained earnings

Restricted regulatory resarve
Available for sale reserve
Other reserve

Total ordinary shareholders’ equity

Liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities - Life insurance
Interest bearing borrowings
Lease liabilities

Retirement benefit obligations
Reinsurance craditors
Amounts due to related parties
Other liahifities

Income tax liability

Bank overdraft

Total liabilivies

Total liabilities and equity

Mote

13.1

14

15.1
15.2
153

16
17

18
19
20
21

13.2
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2024 2023
Hz. As.

36,076,642 12,159,404
1,430,748 33,311,968
2.031,475 12,948,825
: 50,185,867
83,550,000 3,550,000
19,073,549, 881 14,264,693,066
105,162,979 101,124,144
51,263,128 62,143,588
407,502,211 565,274, 748
2,405,024 1,305
139,164,063 77,683,712
577,221,845 401,616,830
20,492,257,996 15,710,764,457
1,350,000,000 1,350,000,000
3,437,937.975 2,807 535,711
256,134,380 256,134,380
541,378,769 332,912,537
14,130,383 14,130,383
5,600,081,507 4,760,713,011
13,321,536,180 0,520,588 904
136,126,530 141,634,769
1,456,354 87,842,908
20,942,057 20,292,528
235,176,808 117,563,378
63,663,174 155,260,925
1,050,639,365 856,503,232
41,629,375 1,896,349
21,006,646 35,368,453
14,892,176,489 10,950,051 446
20,492,257,996 15,710,764,457

These Financial Statements are prepgred in compliance with the requirement of the Companies Act No.07 of 2007.

Chief Financial Officer - LOLC Uife Assurance Limited

The board of directors is responsible for these Financial Statements.

Signed for and an hehalfo‘(he Board by:

Directar

The accounting policies and notes on pages 11 through 72 tarm an integral part of the financial statements,

30 April 2025
Rajagiriya (Greater Calombo)

Mrs. B.W A, Nanayakkara

Director




LOLE Life Assurance Limited
Statement of income
Year ended 31 December 2024

Gross written premium
Premium ceded to reinsurers
Net written premium

Other income

Investment income

-Interest income from available-for-sale financial assets
-Interest income from loans and receivables

- Fairvalue gains on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Fees and commission income

Realised gains on disposal of available-for-sale investments
Otherincome

Total other income

Totalincome

Benefits, claims and expenses

Insurance claims and benefits (net)
Underwriting and net acquisition costs

Other operating and administrative expenses
Finance costs

Total benefits, losses and expenses

Increase in provision for insurance contract liability

Profit before income tax expense
Income tax expense

Profit far the year

Basic earnings per share

Mote

221
22.2

23
23

23
24

25

26
27
28
29

31

3zi1
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2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
8.159,732,780 5,575,626,060
(282,300,0772) {310,636,032)
7,877,432,708 5,264,990,028
1,332,225,517 1,018,030,5914
119,226,241 /08,336,439
87,242,335 79,384,193
8,321,173 6,365,501
. 12,669,463
106,793,161 48,206,417
2,253,808,427 1,932,992,927
10,131,241,135 7,197,982, 955
(3,163,984,545) 12,527,262 ,4965)
(307,586,419) (248,654,149)
(2,690,690,650) (1,835,704,095)
(24,885,649) (33,801,615
(6,187,147,263) (4,645,422,324)

{3,131,158,815)

{1,613,585,227)

812,935,057 938,975,404
{182,532,753) =
630,402,264 938,975,404
4.67 6.96
P * I-'.::‘: Bz,
FOel L L¢--Pfrtﬂ9‘3“
(
|
% SN :

ko —
\\‘%E__Dh_lnmbo Lo

,

e

The accounting policies and notes on pages 11 through 72 farm an integral part of the financial statements.



Page b

LOLC Life Assurance Limited
Statement of comprehensive income
Year ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
Note Rs. Rs.

Prafit far the year 630,402,264 938,575,404
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Gratuity - actuarial gain/{loss) - Life assurance 182 2,054,256 (206,656)
lransferced to Life fund - actuarial gain/{loss) on gratuity {2,954,256) 206,656
Tax impact 314 - -
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Met gain/{loss) on available-for-sale assets - Life insurance - unrealized 678,034,314 1,74%,913,097
Transferred to life fund -Net gain/{loss)

an available-for-sale assets - unrealized (678,034,314) (1,748,913,097)
Net gainf{loss) on available-for-sale assets - Life shareholders - unrealized 208,966,232 731,027,885

208,966,232 731,027 885
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax 208,966,232 731,027,885
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax £35,368,496 1,670,003,289
N

The accounting policies and notes on pages 11 through 72 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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LOLC Life Assurance Limited
Statement of cash flows
Year ended 31 December 2024

Cash flows from operating activities

Premium received from policy holders

Reinsurance premiums (net of commission) paid
Chaims, benefits and expenses paid

Reinsurance receipts in respect of claims and benefits
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees

Lease Interest

Payments to brokers and agents

Interest received from policy loans and cash at bank
Other operating cash payments

Cash flows generated from operating activities

faxation

Net cash flows generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of other investments
Proceeds from financial investments

Interest received

Purchase of intangible assets
Furchase of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cashflows from financing activities

Principal element of lease payments

Praceeds from long term borrowings

Proceeds from issue of shares

Net cash flows generated from financing activities

Increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The accounting policies and notes on pages 11 through 72 form an integral part of the financial statements.

Note

14

13

Pape B

2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
8,356,837,911 5,599,432,549
(148,559,949) (297,679,772)
(3,350,421,939) {2,603,258,576)
88,483,853 170,840,662
(591,675,701) (518,842,500
(287,831) (15,285,122)
(492,398,181) (452,714,119)
20,174,813 32,115,831
(2,007,624,672) (967,346,155}
1,874,528,305 847,262,798
129,918,893 -
2,004,447,198 947,262,798
{4,512,189,654) {7,807,443,265)
1,011,748,129 5,245,488,721
2,149,738,305 1,808,215,586
{296,000) {10,001,585)
(30,567,946) {2,938,800)
4,000,000 43,454
{1,377,567,166) (766,635,889)
(6,990,224) (12,758,962)
(5,508,239) (9,219,304}
(12,498,463) (21,978,266)
614,381,569 158,648,642
1,120,626,977 961,978,334
1,735,008,546 1,120,626,977
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1.1

1.2

13

14

21.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Reporting entity

LOLC Life Assurance Limited ("Company”) is an unguoted public company incorporated on 03
March 2010 and domiciled in Sri Lanka. The registered office of the Company is located at No.100/1,
Sri Jayewardenepura Mawatha, Rajagiriya, Sri Lanka and the principal place of business is situated
atl the Mo 258, Grandpass Road, Colombo 01400.

Principle activities and nature of operation
The principal activity of the Company is Life assurance business.
Parent entity and ultimate parent entity

The Company’s immediate parent is LOLC Asset Holdings Limited and ultimate parent undertaking
is LOLC Helding PLC,

Date of authorization for issue

The financial statements of LOLC Life Assurance Limited for the year ended 31 December 2024
were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 April 2025. The directors have the power
to amend and reissue Lthe financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company has been prepared in accordance with Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards, which camprise Sri Lanka Financial Reporting Standards (“SLFRS"s), Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards (“LKAS”s), relevant interpretations of the Standing Interpretations
Committee ["SIC"), International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee ("IFRIC") and
comply with the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 and the requirements of the Regulation of Insurance
Industry Act No. 43 of 2000. Sri Lanka Accounting Standards further comprises of Statements of
Recommended Practices (SoRPs), Statements of Alternate Treatments (SoATs} and Financial
Reporting Guidelines issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. These financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for financial assets and
liabilities which are measured at fair value. The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where are
significant to the Company's financial statements are disclosed in note 2.2 to the financial
statements,

The amendments to the 5ri Lanka Accounting Standards that are relevant for the preparation of
the Company’s financial statements have been adopted by the Company (a) new standards and
amendments that are effective for the first time for periods commencing onor after 1 January 2024
raadards and

dar
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2.1.2

(a)

New standards and amendments —- applicable for the first time for periods commencing 1 lanuary
2024

In the current year, the Company has applied a number of amendments to 5ri Lanka Accounting
Standards issued by the CA Sri Lanka that are mandatorily effective for an accounting period that
begins on or after 1 lanuary 2024,

Amendments to LKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and SLFRS practice statement 2
making materiality judgments - Disclosure of accounting policies

The amendments change the requirements in LKAS 1 with regard to disclosure of accounting
policies. The amendments replace all instances of the term ‘significant accounting policies” with
‘material accounting policy information’. Accounting policy infermation is material if, when
cansidered together with other infarmation included in an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general-purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements,

The supporting paragraphs in LKAS 1 are also amended to clarify that accounting policy information
that relates to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions is immaterial and need not be
disclosed. Accounting policy infarmation may be material because of the nature of the related
transactions, other events or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not all
accounting pelicy infermation relating to material transactions, other events, or conditions is itself
material.

The CA Sri Lanka has also developed guidance and examples to explain and demonstrate the
application of the “four-step materiality process’ described in SLFRS Practice Statement 2.

{b) Amendments to LKAS 12 Income taxes - Deferred tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from

(€]

a single transaction

The amendments introduce a further exception from the initial recognition exemption. Under the
amendments, an entity does not apply the initial recognition exemption far transactions that give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, Depending on the applicable tax law,
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences may arise on initial recognition of an asset and
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting profit nor
taxable profit,

Following the amendments to LKAS 12, an entity is required to recognise the related deferred tax
asset and liability, with the recognition of any deferred tax asset being subject to the recoverability
criteria in LKAS 12.

Amendments to LKAS 12 Income taxes—International tax reform—Pillar two model rules

The CA 5ri Lanka amends the scope of LKAS 12 to clarify that the Standard applies to income taxes
arising from tax law enacted or substantively enacted to implement the Pillar Two model rules
published by the OECD, including tax law that implements gualified domestic minimum top-up
taxes described in those rules. N
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(d)

2.1.3

(a}

The amendments introduce a temporary exception lo the accounting requirements for deferred
taxes in LKAS 17 so that an entity would neither recognise nor disciose infarmation about deferred
tax assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two income taxes.

Following the amendments, the group is required to disclose that it has applied the exception and
to disclose separately its current tax expense {income) related to Pillar Two income taxes.

Amendments to LKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors—
Definition of Accounting Estimates

The amendments replace the definition of a change in accounting estimates with a definition of
accounting estimates, Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. The definition of a change in
accounting estimates was deleted.

New standards and amendments issued but not effective or early adopted in 2024

The following new accounting standards and interpretations are issued by IASB but not yet
adopted by CA Sri Lanka.

Entities are required to disclose in their financial statements the potential impact of new and
revised IFRS Accounting Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective, The
disclosures below reflect a cut off date of 02 December 2024. The impact of the application of
the new and revised IFRS Accounting Standards (see below) is for illustrative purposes only.
Entities should analyse the impact based on their specific facts and circumstances,

SLFRS 9 Financial Instruments and associated amendments to various other standards

SLERS 9 replaces the multiple classification and measurement models in LKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and measurement with a single model that has initially only two
classification categories: amortised cost and fair value,

Classification of debt assets will be driven by the entity’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets, A debt
instrument is measured at amortised cost if: 2) the objective of the business model is to hold the
financial asset for the collection of the contractual cash flows, and b} the contractual cash flows
under the instrument solely represent payments of principal and interest.

All other debt and equity instruments, including investments in complex debt instruments and
equity investments, must be recognised at fair value.

All fair value movements on financial assets are taken through the statement of income, except
for equity investments that are not held for trading, which may be recorded in the statement of
income or in reserves [without subseguent recycling to profit or loss).

For financial liabilities that are measured under the fair value option entities will need to recognise
the part of the fair value change that is due to changes in their own credit risk in other
comprehensive income rather than profit or loss.
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The new hedge accounting rules align hedge accounting more closely with common risk
management practices. As a general rule, it will be easier to apply hedge accounting going
forward, The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure requirements and changes in
presentation.

Further changes were introduced to the classification and measurement rules and alsa introduced
a new impairment model to SLFRS 9, The changes introduce:

i, a third measurement category (FVOCH) for certain financial assets that are debt instruments

ii. anew expected credit loss (ECL) model that involves a three-stage approach whereby
financial assets move through the three stages as their credit quality changes. The stage
dictates how an entity measures impalrment loss and applies the effective interest rate
method. A simplified approach is permitted far financial assets that do not have a significant
financing component (e.g., trade receivables). On initial recognition, entities will record a
day-1 loss equal ta the 12-month ECL (or lifetime ECL for trade receivables), unless the
assets are considered credit impaired.

The Company has adopted Amendments to SLFRS 4 - Applying SLFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
SLFRS 4 Insurance Contracts which allows the Company to apply temporary exemption from SLFRS
9 until new insurance standards become effective.

Amendment to SLFRS 4 which addresses the concerns of insurance companies about the different
effective dates of SLFRS 9 Financial instruments and the forthcoming new insurance contracts
standard. The amendment provides two different solutions for insurance companies: a temporary
exermnption from SLERS 9 for entities that meet specific requirements (applied at the reporting
entity level), and the ‘overlay approach’. Both approaches are optional.

SLFRS 4 (including the amendments) will be superseded by the forthcoming new insurance
contracts standard. Accordingly, both the temporary exemption and the ‘overlay approach’ are
expected to cease to be applicable when the new insurance standards become effective.

The Company meets the specific requirements to apply the temporary exemption from SLFRS 8
as noted below and Cormpany selected the option of temporary exemption from SLFRS 9.

il The Company’s insurance-related liabilities are less than 90% but greater than 80% of the total
liahilities of the Company; and

ii) The Company is only involved in the Life Assurance businesses as noted in the Principle activities
and nature of the aperation (Note 1.2) section and does not hold assets or liabilities relating to
business activities other than the principle business activities of the Company.

Disclosures to provide comparability

Financial assets that meet the SPPI test, Solely Payment of Principal and Interest (excluding the
financial assets that meet the definition of held for trading and evaluated on a fair value basis).
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I T [ 23 ]
Current P s Carrying value
Instrument | Classificatio Fy#ig Fair value under LKAS Fair value
under LKAS 39
n - : 33 i< .
Rs. Rs. T e Rs. )
Treasury Available for

10,749,513,491 | 10,749,513,491 | 8874,136,428 | 8874,136428
~_bonds Sales | o 1) I e e S
HepuiEhase LBk e 1,178,793,347 | 1,178,793347 | 757,378,600 | 757,378,600
agreements Receivables | |

Loan &

Debentures - 2,014,446,963 2,014,446963 | 1,965,182,263 | 1,965,182 263
| Receivables = B =

Cofnimeicial kWS 4,026,130,626 | 4,026,130,626 | 1,679,566,373 | 1,679,566,373
papers Receivables _ =

s |

Assetatched | loands : 51,136,986 51,136,986
Securities Receivables A =

Taroydsnane | ONE 458,621,052 | 458,621,052 | 438,408,223 | 438,408,223
B Receivables = el =/

All other financial assets (that meet the definition of held for trading or managed and evaluated on a fair

value basis).
N = 2024 2023
Curcent Carrying Carrying .
Instrument classiBcition value under Fair value value under Fair value
LKAS 39 LKAS39
Rs. Rs. Rs. __Rs,
Held for
. : 646,044,400 | 646,044,400 498,884,193 | 498,884,193

| Unit trusts trading ; :

{b) SLERS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’

SLFRS 17 was issued in May 2017 as a replacement for SLFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. It requires a
current measurement model where estimates are remeasured in each reporting period. Contracts
are measured using the building blocks of:

s discounted probability-weighted cash flows

= an explicit risk adjustment, and

e a contractual service margin (CSM) representing the unearned profit of the contract which is
recognised as revenue over the coverage period,

The standard allows a choice between recognising changes in discount rates either in the
statement of profit or loss or directly in other comprehensive income. The choice is likely to reflect
how insurers account for their financial assets under SLFRS 2. An optional, simplified premium
allocation approach is permitted for the liability for the remaining coverage for short-duration
contracts, which are often written by non-life insurers. There is a modification of the general

i AtFetswritten by life
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variable fee approach, the entity’s share of the fair value changes of the underlying items is
included in the CSM. The results of insurers using this model are therefore likely to be less volatile
than under the general model. The new rules will affect the financial statements and key
performance indicators of all entities that issue insurance contracts or investment contracts with
discretionary participation features.

Targeted amendments made in July 2020 aimed to ease the implementation of the standard by
reducing implementation costs and making it easier for entities to explain the results from
applying SLFRS 17 to investors and others. The amendments also deferred the application date
similar to SLFRS 17,

Further amendments made in Becember 2021 added a transition option that permits an entity to
apply an optional classification overlay in the comparative period(s) presented on the initial
application of SLFRS 17. The classification overlay applies to all financial assets, including those
held in respect of activities not connected to contracts within the scope of SLFRS 17. It allows
those assets to be classified in the camparative period{s) in a way that aligns with how the entity
expects those assets to be classified on the initial application of SLFRS 9. The classification can be
applied on an instrument-by-instrument basis,

This standard will be effective from 01 January 2026 in 5ri Lanka.

{c) Amendments to LKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements—Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current

The Company has adopted the amendments to LKAS 1, published in lanuary 2020, for the first time
in the current year,

The amendments affect only the presentation of liabilities as current or non-current in the
statement af financial position and not the amount or timing of recognition of any asset, liability,
income or expenses, or the information disclosed about those items.

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-current is based on
rights that are in existence at the end of the reporting period, specify that classification is
unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of a
liability, explain that rights are in existence if covenants are complied with at the end of the
reporting period, and introduce a definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement refers to
the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other assets or services,

{d) Amendments to LKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements—Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

The Company has adopted the amendments to LKAS 1, published in November 2022, for the first
time in the current year.

The amendments specify that only covenants that an entity is required to comply with on or
before the end of the reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting date (and therefore must be considered in assessing
the classification of the liability as current or non-current). Such covenants affect whether the
right exists at the end of the reporting period, even if compliance with the covenant is assessed
only after the reporting date {e.g. a covenant based on the entity’s' findncial pEsition, at the
reporting date that is assessed for compliance only after the repolﬂzl'nlgl date). W
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It alsa specifies that the right to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date is not affected if an entity only has to comply with a covenant after the reporting
period. However, if the entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity
complying with covenants within twelve months after the reporting period, an entity discloses
information that enables users of financial statements to understand the risk of the liabilities
becaming repayable within twelve months after the reporting period. This would include
information about the covenants {including the nature of the covenants and when the entity is
required to comply with them), the carrying amount of related liabilities and facts and
circumstances, if any, that indicate that the entity may have difficulties complying with the
covenants.

(e} Amendments to LKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and SLFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures—Supplier Finance Arrangements

The Company has adopted the amendments to LKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and S5LFRS 7
Financial Instruments: Disclosures on Supplier Finance Arrangements for the first time in the
current year,

The amendments add a disclosure objective to LKAS 7 stating that an entity is required to disclose
information about its supplier finance arrangements that enables users of financial statements to
assess the effects of those arrangements on the entity’s liabilities and cash flows. In addition,
SLFRS 7 is amended to add supplier finance arrangements as an example within the requirements
to disclose information about an entity’s exposure to concentration of liquidity risk.

{f) Amendment to SLFRS 16 Leases—Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The amendments to SLFRS 16 add subsequent measurement requirements for sale and leaseback
transactions that satisfy the requirements in SLFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale. The
amendments require the seller-lessee to determine ‘lease payments’ or ‘revised lease payments’
such that the seller-lessee does not recognise a gain or loss that relates to the right of use retained
by the seller-lessee, after the commencement date.

The amendments do not affect the gain or loss recognised by the seller-lessee relating to the partial
or full termination of a lease. Without these new requirements, a seller-lessee may have recognised
a gain on the right of use it retains solely because of a remeasurement of the lease liability (for
example, following a lease modification or change in the lease term) applying the general
requirements in SLFRS 16. This could have been particularly the case in a leaseback that includes
variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate.

As part of the amendments, the IASB amended an Illustrative Example in SLFRS 16 and added a
new example to illustrate the subsequent measurement of a right-of-use asset and lease liability in
a sale and leaseback transaction with variable lease payments that do not depend an an index or
rate. The illustrative examples also clarify that the liability, that arises from a sale and leaseback
transaction that qualifies as a sale applying SLFRS 15, is a lease liability.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024,
Earlier application is permitted. If a seller-lessee applies the amendments for an earlier period, it is
required to disclose that fact,
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2.1.4

2.1.5

216

2.1.7

218

2.1.9

A seller-lessee applies the amendments retrospectively in accordance with LKAS 8 to sale and
leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application, which is defined as the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applied SLFRS 16.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared an the historical cost basis and applied consistently
with no adjustments being made for inflationary factors affecting the financial statements, except
for the following material items in the statement of financial position.

* Insurance contract liability is based on actuarially determined values.

¢ Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value.

*  Defined benefit obligations are actuarially valued and recognized at the presant value,

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Company operates.

The financial statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupee (LKR), which is also the functional
currency of the Company. All financial information presented in Sri Lankan Rupee has been
rounded ta the nearest Rupee unless stated otherwise,

Comparative infarmation

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and, are consistent with
those used in the previous year.

Materiality and aggregation

Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the financial statements. Items of
dissimilar nature or function are presented separately unless they are immaterial.

Offsetting

Assets and liabilities, and income and expenses, are not offset unless required or permitted by
SLFRSs.

Going concern

The Board of Directors is satisfied that the Company has adequate resources to continue its
operations in the foreseeable future and going-concern basis has been adopted in preparing these
financial statements.
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2.1.10 Supplementary statements of the life assurance fund

2.1.11

2.2

a)

Fund together with the notes are disclosed in pages number 9 and 10 continuing the past practice
which was a requirement of the Statement of Recommended Practice (SoRP) for Insurance
Contracts then applicable, adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (CA Sri
Lanka). These supplemental statements do not form part of the Audited annual financial
staterments,

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these Financial
Statemnents in accordance with the basis of preparation as per Note 2.1.1.

This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free fram material
risstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENT

The preparation of the Financial Statements in conformity with SLFRSs requires management to
make judgments, estimates, and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results which form the basis of
making the judgments about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are included in the following notes to
these financial statements.

Valuation of insurance contract liabilities (Note 16)

The liability for life insurance contracts and investment contracts with discretionary participation
features (DPF) is based either on current assumptions or on assumptions established at the
inception of the contract, reflecting the best estimate at the time increased with a margin for risk
and adverse deviation. All contracts are subject to a liability adequacy test, which reflect
management’s best current estimate of future cash flows, The main assumptions used relate to
mortality, morbidity, longevity, investment returns, expenses, lapse and surrender rates and
discount rates. The Company bases mortality and morbidity on standard industry mortality tables
which reflect historical experiences, adjusted when appropriate to reflect the Co ny's unique




LOLC Life Assurance Limited
Motes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2024

Page 20

experiences. For those contracts that insure risk related to longevity, prudent allowance is made
for expected future mortality improvements, as well as wide ranging changes to life style, could
result in significant changes to the expected future mortality exposure.

Estimates are also made as to future investment income arising from the assets backing life
insurance contracts,

These estimates are based on current market returns, as well as expectations about future
economic and financial developments.

Assumptions on future expense are based on current expense levels, adjusted for expected
expense inflation, if appropriate.

Lapse and surrender rates are based on the Company's historical experience of lapses and
surrenders. Discount rates are based on current industry risk rates, adjusted for the Company's

own risk exposure,

The carrying value at the reporting date of life insurance contract liabilities is Rs, 13,321,526,180
(2023 — Rs. 9,529,588,904).

Assumptions

The following reserving assumptions have been used for the purpose of the annual statutory
valuation as at 31 December 2024;

The following best estimate assumptions have been used as at 31 December 2024:

Mortality Table All products Isurushana Credit Life Life Family
except (DTA/MRP) Takaful
Isurusahana
and
- DTA/MRP §
Age Band % of AB7_70 | % of A67_70 | MunichRe MRP | % of A67/70
Rl Rates B
2024 | 2023 | 2024 | 2023 | 2024| 2023 | 2024 2023
18-35 90% | _9{]% 115% | 115% 100% 100% | 80% &80%
36-45 70% | 70% | 100% | 100% | 115% | 115% | 70% | 70%
46-55 50% | 50% | 80%| 80%| 115% | 115%| S0%| 50%
56 and above 40% | 40% | 50% | 50% | 115% | 115% | 40% | 40%
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Rates for benefits other than mortality

Following % of Rl rate used as the best estimate morbidity rate assumption

Morbidity | % of the applicable

Reinsurance premium rates

_ wea | 2023
ADB B 50% 50% |

-« _ 40%  A0%

HB - 60% 60%
PPD 30% 30% |
1PD | 30% 30%
WOP 40% | 40%
Health Rider ' 100% 100% |

Lapsesf Surrender

The best estimate lapse rates for “LOLC Reality” product is assumed to be 10% level for each year.
Lapse rates for other regular premium products are tabulated below.

2024
Policy Year | Longterm | Dividend-ST | Dividend-DM | ParProducts |
Products

1 67% 49% 50% 39%
2 30% 22% 19% 1%
3 23% 19% 23% 8%
4 23% 26% 27% 19%
5 18% 18% 18% 9%
6 17% 17% 17% 6%
7 12% 12% 12% 9%
8 11% 1% 11% 7%

9+ 8% 8% 8% 8%

2023
Policy Year L:?:d:;—irt:‘ Dividend -ST | Dividend -DM Par Products

1 61% 50% 48% 39%
2 28% 19% 14% 14%
3 22% 14% 24% 8%
4 24% 17% 24% 19%
5 18% 13% 18% 9%
6 15% 11% 15% 6%
7 13% 9% 13% 9%

8+ 8% 6% 8%
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b)

Investment return

In accordance with the RBC guidelines, a risk-free interest rate curve based on 5ri Lankan
government bond yields has been used for discounting liability cash flows. The yield curve as at 31
December 2024 used for discounting the cash flows, provided by IRCSL, is tabulated below. The
vields after year 10 have been assumed to be constant at the 10-year level,

Years to Yield
maturity 2024 2023
1 8.88% 12.88%
2 9.70% 14.09%
3 10.15% 14.06%
4 10.66% 13.85%
5 11.03% 14.59%
6 11.12% 14.38%
7 11.53% 11.03%
8 1m21% | 13.42%
g 11.40% 14.63%
10 11.65% 12.93%
11+ 11.65% 12.93%

Provision for reinsurance

In determining the policy liabilities, the valuation makes provisions for reinsurance according to the
applicable reinsurance terms as per the agreements with reinsurers for all products and riders,
except those for which UPR are held.

For other products, allowance for reinsurance has been made by subtracting the present value of
reinsurance recoveries (calculated using prudent reserving assumptions) net of present value of
reinsurance premiums from the calculated gross reserves. The reserves net of reinsurance have
been floored at zero at the individual policy level.

Retirement benefit obligations (Note 18

The liability for retirement gratuity is recognized based on the actuarial valuation carried out as at
31 December 2024, using the Projected Unit Credit method. The actuarial valuations involve
making assumptions about discount rates, future salary increases and incidence of withdrawals.
Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date.
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d)

23

231

Fair value of financial instruments {Note 35)

The determination of fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded an the
Staternent of Financial Position for which there is no observable market price are determined using
a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical techniques. The inputs to
these models are derived from observable market data where possible, but if this is not available,
judgment is required to establish thair fair values.

Pravisions for liabilities and contingencies

The Company receives legal claims against it in the normal course of business. Management has
made judgments as to the likelihood of any claim succeeding in making pravisions, The time of
concluding legal claims is uncertain, as is the amount of possible outflow of economic benefits,
Timing and cost ultimately depend on the due process in respective legal jurisdictions.

Useful life of property and equipment and intangible assets

The Company estimates the useful life of the property and equipment and software to be at least
5 years based on the expected usage and technical absolescence of such assets, However, the
actual useful life may be shorter or longer than 5 years, depending on the actual usage.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Company has significant influence but not control or joint
cantrol. This is generally the case where the group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are initially recognised at cost and subsequently measured at cost less
impairment.

The Company has applied the exemption from applying the equity method to the investment in
associate as the Company meets the following:

*  The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary and its owners have been informed about, and do
not object to, the Company not applying the equity method.

*  The Company’s debt or equity instruments are not traded in a public market {a domestic or
foreign stock exchange or an over-the-counter market, including local and regional markets).

* The Company did not file, nor is it in the process of filing, its financial statements with a
securities commission or ather regulatory organisation, for the purpose of issuing any class of
instruments in a public market.

* LOLC Holding PLC, the ultimate parent of the Company produces consolidated financial
statements available for public use that comply with SLFRSs, in which subsidiaries are
consolidated.
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When the Company ceases significant influence of an assaciate, any retained interest in the entity
is remeasured to its fair value, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. This
fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as a financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Company had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss. If the ownership interest in an
associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.

Insurance contracts

As permitted by SLFRS 4 Insurance Contracts, the Company continues to apply the existing
accounting policies for Insurance Contracts that were applied prior to the adoption of SLERS.

Product classification

SLFRS 4 requires contracts written by insurers to be classified as either “insurance contracts” or
“investment contracts” depending on the level of insurance risk transferred. Insurance contracts
are those contracts when the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance risk from
another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified
uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders. As a general
guideline, the Company determines whether it has significant insurance risk, by comparing benefits
paid with benefits payable if the insured event did not occur. Insurance contracts can also transfer
financial risk, Investment contracts are those contracts that transfer significant financial risk and
no significant insurance risk. Financial risk is the risk of a possible future change in one or more of
a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index
of price or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of a non-
financial variable that the variable is not specific to a parly to the contract,

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for
the remainder of its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period,
unless all rights and obligations are extinguished or expire. Investment contracts can, however, be
reclassified as insurance contracts after inception if insurance risk becomes significant, All the
products sold by the Company are insurance contracts. Therefore, classified as insurance contracts
under the SLFRS 4 — Insurance Contracts. Thus, the Company does not have any investment
contracts within its product portfolio as at the Reporting date.

Actuarial valuation of life insurance fund

The Directors agree to the long-term insurance provision for the Company at the year-end on the
recommendations of the Independent Consultant Actuary following his/her annual investigation of
the Life insurance business, The actuarial valuation takes into account all liabilities and is based on
assumptions recommended by the Independent Consultant. The long-term insurance provision
was valued by the appointed Actuary — Mr. Philip Jackson.
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a)

b)

Financial instruments
Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of LKAS 39 are classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables, held to maturity investments, available-far-sale financial
assets, or as derivatives desipnated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
The Company determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. Financial
assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through
profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired or originated.
Financial assets are classified as at fair value through profit or loss where the Company's
documented investment strategy is to manage financial investments on a fair value basis because
the related liabilities are also managed on this basis. The available-for-sale and held-to-maturity
categories are used when the relevant liability (including shareholders’ funds) is passively managed
and/for carried at amortised cost,

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade
date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

The Company’s financial assets include cash and short-term deposits, trade and other receivables,
loans and other receivables and quoted and unquoted financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and those
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, Investments typically hought
with the intention to sell in the near future are classified as held for trading. This category includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by LKAS 39. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments, For investments designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the
following criteria must be met:

- The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on a
different basis.

Or

- The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities, or both, which
are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy. :
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These investments are initially recorded at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are
rermeasured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in ‘Fair value gains and losses’. Interest
is accrued and presented in ‘Investment incame’ using the effective interest rate (EIR). Dividend
income is recorded in ‘Investment income’ when the right to the payment has been established,

The Company evaluates its financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (held for trading)
whether the intent to sell them in the near term is still appropriate. When the Campany is unable
to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and management's intent to sell them in the
foreseeable future significantly changes, the Company may elect to reclassify these financial assets
in rare circumstances. The reclassification to loans and receivables, available-for-sale or held to
maturity depends on the nature of the asset. This evaluation does not affect any financial assets
designated at fair value through profit or loss using the fair value option at designation.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial investments include equity and debt securities. Equity investments
classified as available-for-sale are those that are neither classified as held for trading nor designated
at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those that are intended to
be held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity ar
in response to changes in the market conditions.

After initial measurement, available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value, with unrealised gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive income in the available-
for-sale reserve {equity). Where the insurer holds maore than one investment in the same security
that they are deemed to be disposed of on a first-in first-out basis. Interest earned whilst holding
available-for-sale investments s reported as interest income using the EIR. Dividends earned whilst
holding available-for-sale investments are recognised in the statement of income as ‘Investment
income’ when the right of the payment has been established. When the asset is derecognised the
cumulative gain or loss is recognised in realized gain on disposal of available for sale investments,
or determined to be impaired, or the cumulative loss is recognised in the statement of income in
realized loss on disposal of available for sale investments and removed from the available-for-sale
reserve.

The Company evaluates its available-for-sale financial assets to determine whether the ability and
intention to sell thern in the near term would still be appropriate. In the case where the Company
is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s intention
significantly changes to do so in the foreseeable future, the Company may elect to reclassify these
financial assets in rare circumstances. Reclassification to loans and receivables is permitted when
the financial asset meets the definition of loans and receivables and management has the intention
and ability to hold these assets for the fareseeable future or until maturity. The reclassification to
held-to-maturity is permitted only when the entity has the ability and intention to hold the financial
asset until maturity,

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-sale category, any previous gain or loss on
that asset that has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life
of the investment using the EIR. Any difference between the new amortised cost and the expected
cash flows is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the EIR. If the asset is
subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the
statement of income.
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When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to statement of income.

Loans and other receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. These investments are initially recognised at cost, being the
fair value of the consideration paid for the acquisition of the investment. All transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition are also included in the cost of the investment. After initial
measurement, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost, using the EIR, less allowance
for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amartisation is included in
‘investment income’ in the statement of income. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of income when the investments are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation
process.

Held to maturity financial assets

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are
classified as held to maturity when the Company has the intention and ability to hold until maturity.
After initial measurement, held to maturity financial assets are measured at amortised cost, using
the EIR, less impairment. The EIR amortisation is included in ‘Investment income” in the statement
of income. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of income when the investments are
derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset {or, when applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired

Or

- The Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through' arrangement; and either:

- The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset

Or

- The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of
the Company's continuing involvement in the asset,

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Company could be required ta repay.
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In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability, The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assetsis impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets
is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss
event’) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
barikruptcy or other financial re-organisation and where ohservable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or econamic
conditions that carrelate with defaults,

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Company first assesses individually whether
objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Company
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and callectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on assets carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the
asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows {excluding future expected credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s ariginal effective interest rate. Ifa
loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the statement of income. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is
recarded as part of investment income in the statement of income. Loans together with the
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Company. If, in a subsequent year, the
amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is
credited to the ‘other income’ in the statement of income,
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For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis
of the Company's internal credit grading system, which considers credit risk characteristics such as
asset type, industry, peographical location, collateral type, past-due status and other relevant
factors.

Future cash flows on a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are
estimated on the basis of historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar
to those in the group. Histarical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data
to reflect the effects of current canditions on which the historical loss experience is based and to
remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not exist currently, Estimates of
changes in future cash flows reflect, and are directionally cansistent with, changes in related
abservable data from year to year (such as changes in unemployment rates, proparty prices,
commaodity prices, payment status, or other factors that are indicative of incurred losses in the
group and their magnitude). The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash
flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss
experience,

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Company assesses at each reporting date whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired. In the case of
equity investments classified as available-for-sale, objective evidence would include a 'significant
or prolonged’ decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost. ‘Significant’ is to be
evaluated against the original cost of the investment and ‘prolonged’ against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. The Company treats “significant’ generally as 20%
and ‘prolonged’ generally as greater than six months. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in the statement of
income — is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of
income. Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through the statement of
income; increases in their fair wvalue after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive incame.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale, impairment is assessed based on the
same criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost, However, the amount recorded for
impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortised cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of income.

Future interest income continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset
and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of investment income. If,
in a subsequent year, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the statement
of incomne, the impairment loss is reversed through the statement of income.
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Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reparted in the statement
of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously. Income and expense will not be offset in the statement of
income unless required or permitted by any accounting standard or interpretation, as specifically
disclosed in the accounting policies of the Company.

Financial liabilities

The Company classifies non-derivative financial liahilities into the other financial liabilities category
Such financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial liabilities are measured at
amortized cost using effective interest rate method. The Company derecognises a financial liability
when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired.

Financial liabilities comprise of bank overdraft, interest bearing borrowings and other financial
liabilities.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are actively traded in organised financial markets is
determined by reference to quoted market bid prices for assets and offer prices for liabilities, at
the close of business on the reporting date, without any deduction for transaction costs,

For all other financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined by
using appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation techniques include the discounted cash flow
method, comparison to similar instruments for which market observable prices exist, options
pricing models, credit models and other relevant valuation models.

Certain financial instruments are recorded at fair value using valuation techniques because current
market transactions or observable market data are not available. Their fair value is determined
using a valuation model that has been tested against prices or inputs to actual market transactions
and using the Company’s best estimate of the most appropriate model assumptions. Models are
adjusted to reflect the spread for bid and ask prices to reflect costs to close out positions,
counterparty credit and liquidity spread and limitations in the models. Also, profit or loss calculated
when such financial instruments are first recorded (‘Day 1’ profit or loss) is deferred and recognised
anly when the inputs becorme observable or on derecopnition of the instrument.

For discounted cash flow techniques, estimated future cash flows are based on management's best
estimates and the discount rate used is a market-related rate for a similar instrument. The use of
different pricing models and assumptions could produce materially different estimates of fair
values,

The fair value of floating rate and overnight deposits with credit institutions is their carrying value,
The carrying value is the cost of the deposit and accrued interest. The fair value of fixed interest
bearing deposits is estimated using discounted cash flow techniques. Expected cash flows are
discounted at current market rates for similar instruments at the repo ;\ﬂ
QE-




LOLC Life Assurance Limited Page 31
Mates to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2024

2.3.4

If the fair value cannot be measured reliably, these financial instruments are measured at cost,
being the fair value of the consideration paid for the acquisition of the investment or the amount
received on issuing the financial liability. All transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
are also included in the cost of the investment.

Determination of foir values
a) Financial instruments in level |

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices
as at the reporting date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or reguiatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions an an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Company is the last traded
price in an active market, These instruments are included in level 1.

b} Financial instruments in level Il

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market
data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 1L
Instruments included in level Il comprise primarily investments in Treasury bills and Treasury bonds
issued by the Government of Sri Lanka.

specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include;

s Present value of the estimated future cash flows based on observable yield curves;

s Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair value
for the remaining financial instruments

The table below shows the different basis used in assessing the fair value of financial instruments,

rlnstrumem Instrument | Fair value basis and assumptions Fair value
| category _ Hierarchy
Available for | Treasury Valued using market prices (the bid quotes) | Level 02
sale instruments | Bonds & | available in the market.
Bills
Fair value | Unit Trust | Valued using market prices (the bid quotes) Level 02
through  profit available in the market,
Land loss

Reinsurance

The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business. Reinsurance assets represent
balances due from reinsurance companies. Recoverable amounts are estimated in a manner
consistent with the outstanding claims provision and are in accordance with the reinsurance
contract. Reinsurance is recorded gross in the reporting date unless a righ t exists. If &
owie Par\!n.g.,‘,j

>
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reinsurance asset is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount accordingly and
recognizes 2 loss in the statement of income.

A reinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective evidence, as a result of an event that occurred
after the initial recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the company may not receive all amounts
due to it under the terms of the contract, and the event has a reliably measurable impact on the
amount that the company will receive from the reinsurer. Reinsurance assets are de-recognized
when the contractual rights are extinguished or expired or the contract is transferred to another

party.
Insurance receivables

Insurance receivables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable. Subsequent to initial recognition, insurance receivables
are measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method, The carrying value of
insurance receivables is reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable, with the impairment loss recorded in the statement
of income,

Insurance receivables are derecopnized when the derecognition criteria for financial assets, as
described in Note 2.3.3.1 (c) have been met.

Other receivables and dues from related parties

Other receivables and dues from related parties are measured on initial recognition at the fair value
and subsequently measured at amortized cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and cash at banks and other highly liquid
financial assets which are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments with
original maturities of less than three months which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in
their fair value,

Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the company cash
management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
statement of cash flows.

Intangible assets

Basis of recognition

An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits that are attributable
to the assets will flow to the entity and the cost of the assets can be measured reliably.

Cnlin_';_‘.ﬂ;?_,/
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Basis of measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are initial recognized at cost. Following the initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment losses. The useful life of intanpible assets is assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite useful life are amartized over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortization period and the method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at
least al each financial year end. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash generating unit level.

subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future
econamic benefits embodied these assets. All other expenditure is expensed when incurred.

De-recognition

Intangible assets are de-recognized on disposal ar when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use. The gain or loss arising from de-recognition of intangible assets are measured as
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are included in
the staternent of income.

Amortization
Amoartization is recognized in the statement of income on 3 straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of intangible assets, other than goodwill, from the date that they are available for use.

The estimated useful life of computer software is 5 years.

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

Property and equipment
Basis of recognition

Property and equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the asset will flow to the Company and cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Basis of measurement

items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation/
impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of
celf-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs directly
attributable to bring the assets to a working condition for their intended use, the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located and capitalized
borrowing costs.
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Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as
part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted
for as separate items of property and equipment,

Cost model

The Company applies the cost model to all property, plant and equipment.; which records at cost
of purchase together with any incidental expenses thereon less any accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property and equipment is recognized in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part
will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is de-recognized. The costs of the repair and maintenance of property and equipment are
recognized in profit or loss as incurred,

Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Significant components of
individual assets are assessed and if a component has a useful life that is different from the
remainder of that asset, that component is depreciated separately.

Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of
each component of an item of property and equipment. Leased assets are depreciated over the
shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasanably certain that the Company will
obtain ownership by the end of the lease term,

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use and ceases at the earlier of the date that
the asset is classified as held for sale and the date that the asset is de-recognized,

Depreciation methods and useful life spans are assessed at the reporting date. The estimated useful
lives for the current year are as follows:

- Furniture and Fittings 5 Years
- Office Equipment 5 Years
- Computer equipment 5 Years
- Air Conditioners 5 Years

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognized upon disposal ar when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal,



LOLC Life Assurance Limited Page 35
Motes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2024
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The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment s determined by
comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amaount of the properly, plant and
equipment, and is recognized net within other incomefother expenses in the statement of income.

Leases

The Company leases various office spaces. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of
6 months to 10 years, but may have extension options as described in Note 5.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company allocates the
consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-
alone prices, Howeyer, for leases of real estate for which the Company ic a leszae, it has elected
not to separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for these as a single lease
component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions, The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in
the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes,

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Company.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

. fixed payments {including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

. variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement date

. amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residual value puarantees

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that
option, and

- payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company
exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, which Is generally the case for leases in the Company, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Company:

. where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was
received

- uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Company, which does not have recent third party finangi
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- makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and security,

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

- the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

- any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received

- any initial direct costs, and

- restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the |lease
term on a straight-line basis. If the Company is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the ripht-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset's useful life,

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss, Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and small
items of office furniture.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s Non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the
assets' recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount
of an asset or its related Cash-Generating Unit (CGU) exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.

The Campany’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows and are utilized by more
than one CGU. Corporate assets are allocated to CGUs on a reasonable and consistent basis and
tested for impairment as part of the testing of the CGU to which the corporate asset is allocated,

impairment losses are recognized in statement of income. Impairment losses recopnized in respect
of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU
(group of CGUs), and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU {group of
CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, if no impairment loss had been recognized.
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a)

b)

Insurance contract liabilities
Insurance provision-life insurance

Life insurance liabilities are recopnized when contracts are entered into and premiums are charged.
These liabilities are measured by using the gross premium method as specified by the Insurance
Regulatory Commission of Sri Lanka (IRCSL) based on the recommendation of the Independent
Consultant Actuary. The liability is determined as the sum of the discounted value of the expected
future benefits, less the discounted value of the expected future premiums that would be required
to meet the future cash outflows based on the valuation assumptions used. The liability is
computed based on IRCSL specified guidelines and current assumptions which vary based on the
contract type.

Furthermore, adjustments are performed to capture the likely liabilities that may arise due to
currently lapsed contracts reviving in the future.

In the accounting policy for insurance liabilities that have been adopted for the Company, realised
gains or losses on certain assets have a direct effect on the measurement of certain related
insurance assets and liabilities. This is either because of the way that the accounting model warks
or because the policyholder has a contractual right linked to realised gains and losses only. In these
situations, if unrealised gains or losses on these assets exist, the Company applies ‘shadow
accounting’, By applying shadow accounting, the Company treats the impact of unrealised gains or
losses on insurance assets and liabilities affected by an unrealised gain or loss en a financial asset
in the same way as the realised gain or loss an that asset. In particular, the related adjustment to
insurance liabilities is recognised in equity if the unrealised gains or losses are recognised directly
in equity. Shadow accounting is consistently applied to all those situations where realised gains and
losses on investments would influence insurance assets and/or insurance liabilities, and unrealised
gains and losses on those investments exist. Where applicable, the adjustment to insurance
liabilities is recognised in a manner consistent with the recognition of the unrealised gains and
losses on the investments.

As required by the SLFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts, the Company performed a Liability Adequacy Test
(LAT) in respect of Life insurance contract liabilities with the assistance of an external actuary. In
performing the adequacy test, current best estimates of future contractual cash flows, including
related cash flows such as claims handling and policy administration expenses, policyholder options
and guarantees, as well as investment income from assets backing such liabilities, are used,

Discretionary Participation Features (DPF)

A DPF is a contractual right that gives holders of these contracts the right to receive as a supplement
to guaranteed benefits, significant additional benefits which are based on the performance of the
assets held within the DPF portfolio whose amount or timing is contractually at the discretion of
the Company. Under the terms of the contracts, surpluses in the DPF funds can be distributed to
policyholders and shareholders on a 90/10 basis. The Company has the discretion over the amount
and timing of the distribution of these surpluses to policyholders. All DPF liabilities including
unallocated surpluses, both guaranteed and discretionary, at the end of the reporting period are
held within insurance or investment contract liabilities, as appropriate.
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23.16

a)

Insurance payables

Insurance payables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value
of the consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs, Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Insurance payables are derecognised when the obligation under the liability is settled, cancelled or
expired.

Other liabilities

Liabilities are recognized in the financial position when there is a present obligation as a result of a
past event, the settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits.

Obligations payable at the demand of the creditor within one year of the statement of financial
position date are treated as current liabilities. Liabilities payable after one year from the reporting
date are treated as non-current liabilities. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest methaod.,

Provisions

Provisions are made for all obligations existing as at the statement of financial position date when
it is prabable that such an obligation will result in an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate
can be made of the quantum of the outflow. All contingent liabilities are disclosed as a note to the
Financial Statements unless the outflow of resources is remote. Contingent assets are disclosed,
where inflow of economic benefit is probable.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used
to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Employee henefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an
employee benefit expense in the statement of income in the periods during which services are
rendered by employees.

i) Employees’ Provident Fund (EPF)

The Company and employees contribute 12% and 8% respectively on the salary of each employee
to the above-menticned funds.
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23.17

b)

23.18

i) Employees’ Trust Fund (ETF)
The Company contributes 3% of the salary of each employee to the Employees’ Trust Fund.

Defined benefits plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the
armount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and
prior periods; and discounting that benefit to determine its present value. The calculation is
performed annually by a qualified independent actuary using the projected unit credit (PUC)
method as recommended by LKAS 19 - Employee Benefits,

Actuarial gains and losses are charged or credited to other comprehensive income statement in the
period in which they arise. The assumptions based on which the results of the actuarial valuation
was determined, are included in Note 18.3 to the financial statements.

However, accarding to the Payment of Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983, the liability for the gratuity
payment to an employee arises only on the completion of 5 years of continued service with the
Caompany.

This retirement benefit obligation is not externally funded.

Short-term employee benefits

short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed
as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under
short-term cash bonus if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.

Equity

Stated capital

Stated capital in relation to the Company means the total of all amounts received by the Company
or due and payable to the Company in respect of the issue of shares and in respect of calls on

shares.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognized as a deduction
from equity, net of any tax effects.

Movement of reserves
Movement of reserves is disclosed in the statements of changes in equity.
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company, and the revenue and associated costs incurred or to be inc can be reliably
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measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net
of trade discounts and value added taxes.

Gross written premium
Life insurance

Gross written premiums on life insurance contracts are recognized as revenue when payable by the
policyholder. Benefits and expenses are provided against such revenue to recognize profits over
the estimated life of the palicies.

For single premium business, revenue is recognized on the date on which the policy is effective
Premium ceded to reinsurers

Gross reinsurance premiums on insurance contracts are recognized as an expense on the earlier of
the date when premiums are payable or when the policy becomes effective, Reinsurance premiums
are decided based on rates agreed with reinsurers,

Fees and commission income

Policyhaolders are charged for policy administration services and other contract fees. These fees are
recognised as revenue upon the issue of the insurance policies,

Interest income

Interest income and expenses are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest rate
method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial assets or liabilities {or, where
appropriate, a shorter period) to the carrying amount of the financial assets or liabilities. When
caleulating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates future cash flows considering all
cantractual terms of the financial instrument, but not future credit losses.

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes all transaction costs, fees and points paid or
received that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or
liability.

Other income

Other income is recognized on an accrual basis,

Benefits, claims and expenses

Life insurance business

Expenses relate to the acquisition and maintenance of Long-term insurance business. Claims by
death or maturity are charged on notification of death or on expiry of the term, Claims payable

includes direct cost of settlement. Interim payments and surrenders are accounted for at the time
of settlement.

Colomba 257
olomte 22"
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23.21

Reinsurance claims

Reinsurance claims are recognized when the related gross insurance claim is recognized according
to the terms of the relevant contract.

Underwriting and acquisition costs

Underwriting and acquisition costs are recognized on the same basis premium income is recognised
in the statement of income.

Other expenses

Expenses are recognized in the statement of income on the basis of a direct association between
the cost incurred and the earning of specific items of income. All expenditure incurred in the
running of the business and in maintaining the property, plant & equipment ina state of efficiency
has been charged to statement of income in arriving at the profit for the year.

For the presentation of the statement of income the Directors are of the opinion that the nature
of the expenses method presents fairly the element of the Company’s performance, and hence

such presentation method is adopted.

Repairs and renewals are charged to the statement of income in the year in which the expenditure
is incurred.

Finance costs

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings and impairment losses recognized on
financial assets (other than trade receivables), that are recognized in in the statement of income.

Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the Reporting date, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

The provision for income tax is based on the elements of income and expenditure as reported in
the Financial Statements and computed in accordance with the provisions of the Inland Revenue

Act. No 24 of 2017 and subsequent amendments thereto,

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the Commissioner General of Inland Revenue,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
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2.3.24

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the
same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and
assels on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary
differences, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced
Lo Lhe extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be realized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted,

The net increase in the carrying amount of deferred tax liability net of deferred tax asset is
recognized as deferred tax expense and conversely any net decrease is recaognized as reversal to
deferred tax expense, in the statement of income.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency (Sri Lankan Rupees) of
the Company at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are
retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date, The foreign currency gain
or loss on monetary items is the difference between amortized cost in the functional currency at
the beginning of the year, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the year, and the
amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the year.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of income on a net basis within
ather income or other expenses.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic/ diluted earnings per share data for its ordinary shares. Basic earnings
per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ardinary shares outstanding during the year.

Cash flow statement

The Cash flow statement has been prepared using the 'Direct Method' of preparing cash flows in
accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard LKAS 7 'statement of cash flows',
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3 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Cost
At 01 January 2023
Additions

AL 01 January 2024
Additions

Disposals/ Transfers

As at 315t December 2024

Accumulated depreciation
At 01 January 2023
Charge for the year

At 01 January 2024
Reversal of depriciation due to disposal of a
Charge for the year

As at 31st December 2024

Carrying amount
As at 31st Decermnber 2024

As At 31 December 2023
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Furniture & Equipment Computer Total
Fittings Hardware
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
39,698,826 31,474,712 50,867,021 122,040,559
- = 2,538,801 2,938,801
39,698,820 31,474,712 53,805,822 124,979,360
212,400 30,355,546 30,567,946
L ~ {10,710,000} | (10,710,000)
39,698,826 20,977,112 24,161 368 144,837 306
38,308,597 27,845,364 40,670,951 106,824,912
B23,856 1,386,789 3,754,399 5,965,044
39,132,453 79,232,153 44,425 350 112 789,956
(10,710,000} = {10,710,000)
441,150 Q02,982 4,436,576 5,780,708
39,573,603 19,425,135 48,861,926 107,860,664
125,223 1,551,977 35,299,442 36,976,642
566,373 2,242,560 9,380,471 12,189,404

3.1 ouring the financial year, the Company acquired property and equipment to the aggregate value of Rs. 30,567,946
{2023 - Rs.2,938,800). Cash payments amounting to Rs. 30,567,946 (2023 - Rs. 2,938,800) were made during the

year for purchase of property and equipment,

As at 31 December 2024, the gross carrying value of the property and equipment fully depreciated that s stillin use
amounted to Rs 147,945,770.29 (2023 - Rs 101,158,744).

4 LEASES

This note provides information for leases where the Company is a lessee.

4.1 Amounts recognised in the statement of financial position

Right-of-use assets
Buildings

Movements of right-of-use assets during the year are as follows:

Balance as at 1 January
Additions

Remeasurement
Depreciation during the year

As at 31st Decernber
Lease liabilities

Current
Mon-current

2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
1,430,748 33,341,968
1,430,748 33,341,968
33,341,968 65,968,754
1,635,140 :
(20,794,749)  (21,558,832)
(3,751,611) (11,067,954}
1,430,748 33,341,968
781,038 25,682,947
675,316 62,159,961
1,456,354 87,842,908
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4 LEASES (Contd...)
Movements of lease liabilities during the year are as follows: 2024 2023
Balance as at 1 Januwary £7.842 908 118,718,010
Additions 1,635,140 -
Remeasurement (79,917,151) [21,558,832)
Payments during the year (8,3194.815) (24,601,392)
Interest for the year 290,272 15,285,122
As at 31st December 1,456,354 87,842,908
4.2 Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss

The statemant of profit ar loss shows the following amounts relating to leases:

2023 2022
Rs. Rs.
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets -Buildings 3,751,611 11,067,954
Interest expense {included in finance cost) 290,272 15,285,122
The total cash outllow for leases were, 8,394,815 24,601,392

4.3 Extension and termination options

Extension and termination aptions are included in a number of property and equipment leases. These are used to
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets usad in the Company’s operations. The extension
and termination options held are exercisable only by the Company and not by the respective lessor.

4.4 Critical Judgements in determining the lease term

In determining the lease term, managerment considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive
to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods after
termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended {or not

For leases of buildings, the following factors are normally the most relevant:

- If there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend), the group is typically reasonably certain to
extend (or not terminate),

- If any leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant remaining value, the group is typically
reasanably certain to extend (or not terminate).

- Otherwise, the Company considers other factors including historical lease durations and the costs and
business disruption required to replace the leased asset.

As at 31 December 2024, potential future cash outflows of all lease liabilities have been included in the lease liability.

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised {or not exercised) or the Company becomes obliged to
exercise (or not exercise) it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised if a significant event or a
significant change in circumstances oceurs, which affects this assessment, and that is within the control of the lessee.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer software
Cost

Balance as at 1 January
Additions

s at 31st December

Amortization and impalrment losses
Balance as at 1 January
Charge for the year

As at 31st December

Carrying amount
As at 31st December

During the financial period, the Company acguired intangible assets 1o the aggregate value of
Rs. 10,001,585). Cash payments amounting to Rs. 296,000 (2023 -

the purchase of intangible assets.

Pape 45

2024 2023
Rs. Hs.

£R445513 78,443,928
296,000 10,001,585
88,741,513 £8,445,513
75,496,688 64,951,541
5,213,350 6,545,147
80,710,038 75,496,688
8,031,475 12,948,825

Rs. 296,000 (2023 -
fs. 10,001,585) were made during the year far
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6 EQUITY INVESTMENT

Name of entity Place of Principal No of No of Holding % Cost Cost
business / activities shares  shares
country of

incorporation

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
Serendib Fingdom of Life and Mon- 450,000 450000  15% A55% 89,550,000 89,550,000
Wicroinsurance Cambaodia Life Insurance
Plc Businesses 89,550,000 89,550,000

In June 2021, The Company invested in 45% voting shares of Serendib Microinsurance Plc (SMIPLC). From 2024 onwards,
the stake to the Company bring down to 15% due to new share issuance.

The Company has applied the exemption from applying the equity method to the investment in associate, Company's
ultimate parent LOLC Holdings PLC with its registered office in Mo, 100/1, S Jayawardenapura Mawatha, Rajagiriya
produces consolidated financial statements which includes LOLC Life Assurance Limited and Serendib Microinsurance Plc.
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INVESTNENT SECURITIES

Bvailzhle-for-sale inwesiment Sedurities
Leans and receivablos
Falr valug through profis or lods

Available-for-sale investment securities

Government securitles

Gavemrment seuritles

Freasury bhands
Treasury bills

Kole

7l
1.2
|

11

The Company uses 1he Level 02 ingat 1o Fair vzlue the abowve financial assets

Cascription

wry bonds - counter party

FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES #LC

FIRST CARITAL TREASURIES FLC

FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES FLC

FIAST CARITAL TREASURIES FLC

SEYLAM BANEK

SEYLAN BANEK

FIRST CARTAL THEASUAES PLE

FIRST CAPITAL TREASUACES PLE

ACUMY SECURITIES UMITED - CAM3-HO

FIRST CARITAL THEASLAIES PLC
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED - CME-HD
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC - CMB-HD
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC - CAMB-HD
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC - CMB-HOD
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LINITED - CMB-HO
WEALTHTRUST SECUATIES LINITED - CMB-HO
WEALTHTAUST SECURITIES LINITED - CMB-HO
WEALTHTAUST SECUAITIES LIMITED - CAMB-HOD
FIRST CAMITAL TREASURIES PLC - CME-HD
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED - CMB-HD
WEALTHTRLFST SECURITIES WAMITED - CMB-HOD
ACUTY SECURITIES LIMITED - CMB-HO

FIRST CARITAL THEASUR:ES PLC - CMB-HO
FIRST CAPITAL TREASLIAIES PLC - CAMB-HO
FIRST CAPITAL TAEASLIAIES PLC - CAMB-HO
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LINITED - CME-HO
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC - CAB-HO
FIRST CAPITAL TREASLIRIES PLC - CMB-HO
WEALTHTALST SECURITIES LINITED - CMB-HO
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LINMITED - CHB-HOD
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED
WWEALTHTALIST SECURITIES LIMITED - CAMB-HO
WWEALTHTRUST SECUAITIES UMITED - CMB-HOD
ACUITY SECURITIES LIMITED

ACUTY SECURITIES LIMITED

ACUITY SECURITIES LIMITED

WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED - CMB-HOD
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED - CMB-HO
WEALTHTAUST SECURITIES LIMITED -

FIRET CAMTAL TREASURIES PLC - EMB-HO

Cosl
Rs.

200,058,400
104,165,800
52,012,950
52,188,150
07,859,900
158,074,000
167,007,766
122,630,700
50,753,300
335,517,600
60,429,600
257 882,240
106,335,300
43 958,050
45,342,100
A5, 747,050
A5, 476,500
18,834,550
43,438 65D
85,550,900
51,846,400
£3,649,200
17,555,850
37,654,750
88,44%,300
133,716,000
47, 1E3,600
85,103,200
83,150,965
63,117,350
39,334,350
191,189,E50
BB 440,000
45,059,400
45,174,550
43,730,050
90,623,500
98,354,300
40, B5T, 700
40,561,000
20,532,325
20,584,350
20,616,550
0,688,950
20,741,500
A0,794275
BE 934,700
217 670,600

2024
Rs.

10,7445, 513,491
1,677 591,829
646,014,401
19,073,545,881

Page &7

023
Rs.

8,674,136,423
4,831,672, 445
 45EEE4,193

14,264,693 066

§0,749,513,491

B.B74,136,428

10,749,513,491

B 674,136,428

024 023
Cost Fair va'ue Cost Fair Value
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
9,519,376,88] i0,749,513,291 556,402,452 EB27,301,154
- - 45,663,550 46,535,274
9,539,376,851  10,749,513,491 B,593,156,002 EE74,136,428
Duration Coupon Rate Yield Falr Valig
Rs.

10.25% 1025% 206,635,600

11.50% 10.98% 107,658,700

11.50% 11.00% 53,E19,550

11.50% 10.95%% 53,629,850

11.00% 11.81% 101,300,600

10.25% 11.35% 206,635,600

.00 6.60% 330,143,338

11.00% 6653 103,183,400

10.30% 7-19% 51,571,100

5.00% 1.08% 301,478,100

11.50% TAE®R 54,090,500

10.75% 3.00% 230,708,540

9.00% a.a0% 87,854,400

11258 12.00% 51,957,650

1120% 12.90% 51,785,050

11.20% 10755 51,735,050

11.20% 12.85% 51,785,050

1E.00% 15.00% 70,551,400

18.00% 11.95% 70,591,400

11.50% 2B.00% 129,800,800

11.50% 16.85% 129,E00,300

1E.00% TB0TH 119,925,500

20.00% 28.00% 10,935,900

20.00% 18.25% 10,935,300

17.00% 2250% 104,911,700

20.00% 14,0006 141,871,600

11.00% 15 20% 50,650,300

11000 15.00% 101,300,600

18 0K 13.03% 91,764,820

21 50% 13,500 64,300,400

20.00% 14.73% 64,835,050

18.00% 14.15% 711,774,200

110005 14.15% 101,300,600

12.00% 12.70% 50,154,350

12.00% 12.65% 50,154,350

12.00% 12.60% 50,154,350

9.00% 12.453% 100,452,700

11.00% 12.65% 93,727 800

9.00% 13.45% 44,B59,200

9.00% 13.40% A44,E09.200

5.00% 13.35% 77,440,500

5.00% 13.30% 12,443,500

o.00% 13.25% 22,443,600

9.00% 13.20% 22,449 600

9.00% 13.15% 17,449,600

9.00% 13.10% 11,443, E00

17.00% 212.25% 104,911,700

9.00% 8208 195,728,600



LOLE Life Assurance Lirmited
Motes tethe finanoal staterants
Year erded 31 December 2024

INVESTRAENT SECURITIES {Conid.. }

Dieseriptian

Treasury bands - countes party

FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC - CHB-HD
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC - CHB-HD
FIRST CAPITAL TREASLIRIES PLC - CHAB-HD
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC - CME-HD
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC -CMB-HD
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC - CHIB-HD
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC - CHIB-HO
FIRST CARITAL TREASURIES PLC - CHB-HD
FIRST CAPITAL TREASUIES PLC - CMB-HO
FIRST CADITAL TREASURIES PLC - CMB-HO
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC - CMEB-HD
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC- CMIB KD
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC - CHIS HO
RCUTTY SECURIMIES LIMITED - CASH-HO
ACUITY SECURIIES LMITED - CASB-HD
WEALTHTAUST SECURITIES LIMITED - CMB-HD
WEALTHTAUST SECURITIES LIMITED - CHEB-HD
WEALTHTAUST SECURITIES LIMITED - CRE-HD
FIRST CARTAL TREASURIES PLC - CME-HO
FIRST CAPTAL TREASURIES PLC - CMEB-HD
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC - CMB-HO
FIRST CARTAL TREASURIES FLC - CMB-HO
FIRST CAPITAL TREASURIES FLC - CMB-HO
FIRST CARPTAL TREASURIES PLC - CMB-HO
WEATTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED - CHE-HO
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED - CHB-HO
WEATTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED - CH8-HG
WEAITHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED - CMIZ-HO
HTR - CHE-HD

ACUITY SECUAITIES LIMITED - CMB-HO

FIAST CAFITAL THEASURES PLC - CMB-HO
ACUITY SECURITIES LIMITED - CMB-HO

FIAST CAPITAL THEASURES PLC - CWB-HO
WEALTHTRUST SECUAITIES LIMITED - CHB-HO
WEALTHTRUST SECUMITIES LIMITED - CHB-HO
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED - CRB-HO
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED - CMB-HD
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITEDR - CMB-HD
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED - CMB-HD
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED - CHMB-HD
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES LIMITED - CMB-HO
WEALTHTALST SECURITIES LIMITED - CAB-HO
WEALTHTAUST SECURITIES LIMITED < CMB-HD
FIRST CARITAL TREASURIES PLC - CAE.HO
FIRST CARTAL TREASURIES PLC - CME-HO
FIRST CARITAL TREASURIES PLC - CMB-HD
FIRST CAMTAL TREASURIES PLC - CMB-HO
ACUITY SECURITIES LINITED - CAVB-HD
WEALTHTALIST SECURITIES LIMITED - CMB-HD
NTB - CMB-HD

FIRST CARTAL TREASURIES PLC - CMB-HO
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES UMTED - CREB-HO
WEALTHTRLUST SECURITIES LIMITED - CMB-HO
WEALTHTRUST SECURITIES UMITED - CMB-HD
FrRST CAFITAL TREASURIES PLC - CMB-HO
FIRST CAFITAL TREASURIES PLC - CMB-HO
ACUITY SECURITIES UMITED - CMB-HO

FIRST CAFITAL TREASURIES PLC - CMB-HO
WEALTHTRUST SECUAITIES LIMITED

FIAST CAPITAL TREASURIES PLC

Coal
Rs.

106, 148,600
104,888 847
106,194,900
BE, 381,000
E7,034,100
255,183,500
40,213,300
40,545 250
41,922 500
41,571,730
45,178,800
43,607,704
81,484,600
131,779,800
180,005,400
G, 083,300
48,345,300
41,631 650
42,645,500
42,924,000
43,451,000
43,111,900
43,300,900
42,337,350
64,274,750
35,451,120
B2,659,417
53,175,680
52,546.400
239,013,200
2i3.6TEA00
508,810,000
212,670,600
60,725,600
202 BOT 600
73,858,151
26,157,300
46,255,250
45,883,200
45,433,800
45,208,250
46,005,950
45,611,500
85,732,600
36,744,350
35,964,850
42,709,050
42,596,900
33,468,100
220,682,750
43,367,050
176,836,800
92,354,700
93,222,300
83,423,700
93,775,360
45,001,350
1,038,726
25,593,282
122,965,336

5,539,376,891

Duration

Coupan Rate

9.00%
5.003%
9.00%
1B.00%
1B.00%
1B 0%
0.00%
2000
20003
20.00%
IBO00x
IT.00%
IBOOR
1B.00%
1350%
1B.00%
1B.00%
1E.00%
IE00%
11.00%
11.00%
1L0G%
11.00%
15.00%
1E.00%
11.00%
1L.00%
11.00%
11.75%
10.30%8
9.003%
6.753
9.00%
1150%
1150%
1H.006
11L20%
11.20%
11.20%
1120%
11.20%
11.20%
11.20%
1B00H
20.00%
20.00%
17.00%
17.00%
11.20%
18.00%
11.00%
11.00%
10 75%
11.20%
17.00%
10.75%
23.50%
11.408
11.00%
T.80%

Yield

B.08%

B4

B03%
11.73%
23.50%
FERIE]
TE.I5%
6,003
75.00%
15.35%
21.00%
78.00%
IB.73%
75.03%
IB23%
23.00%
7L.83%
i0.25%
I0:40%
14.E0%
14.50%
14.70%
14.60%
14.80%
13.10%
14.10%
14.30%
18.10%
13.50%

7.18%

T.08%

L33%

E.20%

E.07%
1L64%

7.20%
12.60%
12.55%
12.70%
12.50%
12.95%
121.65%
12.80%
13.00%
25.50%
259.75%
25.00%
22.00%
20,00%
23,50%
15.10%
14.29%
14.25%
12.75%
23.02%

B.00%
FLATE ]
15.22%
14.20%

T.08%
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Fair Value
Rs.

57,864,400
S5, 764,404
97,864,400

119,925,400

119,925,400

159,776,200
70,935,300
70,935,900
70,935,300
70,935,300
66,786,000
57,455,850

119,925,800

197,966,150

258,601,600

178,644 100
64,372,050
70,591,400

141,182,800
50,650,300
50,650,300
50,650,300
50,650,300
50,650,300
66,286,000
40,520,240
71,923,425
£0,780,350
52,334,550

206,784,400

200,985,400

503,733,000

145,728,800
£3,529,850

215,319,400
21,560,903
51,745 650
51,785,050
51,785,050
51,785,050
51,785,050
51,785,050
51,785,050

115,525.400
70,935,500
70,935,500
52,455,850
70,591,400
51,785030

159,813,500
50,650,300

302,601,200

104 853,700

103,530,100

104,911,700
B3,834,160
E4,300,400

1,191,532
19,372,174
112,264,624

10,749,513,491
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T INVESTEAENT SECURITIES (Contd..)

024 2023
1.2 Lloansand recelvab’es Rs: R,
Repurchase agreements (less than 3 months) 1,178,793.347 757,378,600
Debentures F014.446,963 1,955,182,2583
Cornmertizl papers 4,028 130,626 1,675,566,323
Assels backed Securities . 51,136,985
Tesrm depriits 339,262,812 292,274,659
Tesrm deposity: Mudhzrabisha 119,356,241 145,133,564
7,677,801 089 4,801,672,445
w0 23
7.3 fFalrvalue through profit ar loss Rs. Rs.
Indeitrment in unilt 1rusts —E.-‘.rilidié;l_‘}_ _498. BBA 103
46,044,408 498,889,153
024 03
E FOLICYHOLDER AND DTHER LDANS Rs. Rs.
Falicy loans 104,953,103 100,932 644
Staffians : 209,878 191, 500

105,162 975 101,124,194




LOLC Life Assurance Limited
Motes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2024

9 REINSURANCE RECEIVABLES

Reinsurance receivable on claims outstanding

9.1 An ageing of reinsurance receivable an outstanding ¢laims is as follows

Less than 365 days

over 365 days

10 PREMIUMS RECEIVABLE

Due fram policyholders 10.1

Total insurance receivables
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2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
51,263,128 b2,149,588
51,263,128 62,149,588
30,054,513 41,124,556
21,208,615 21,025,032
51,263,128 62,149,588
2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
407,502,211 565,279,748
407,502,211 565,279,748

10.1 Asat 31 December 2024, premiums receivables of Rs. 470,502,211 (2023 - Rs. 565,279,748) were pasl due bul not
impaired. These relate to a number of corporate customers for whom there is no recent history of default, The

ageing analysis of these premiums receivables are as follows:

Within the credit period
0 to 60 days

Past due but not impaired
60 days to 365 days
Cyer 365 days

11 AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

LOLC General Insurance PLC Other Related Company
Brown & Company PLC Other Related Company

12 OTHER ASSETS

Note
Financial assets 12.1
Other assets 12.2

12.1 Financial assets
Refundable deposits

12,2 Other assets
Advances and prepayment
Withholding taxes recoverable
Benevolent loan - Life takaful
Prepayments

225,125,558 326,985,336
169,504,201 230,361,348
12,872,452 7,933,064
182,376,653 238,294,412
407,502,211 565,279,748
2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
2,403,719 -
1,305 1,305
2,405,024 1,305
2024 2023
Rs. Rs.

. 1,573,085
139,164,063 76,110,627
139,164,063 77,683,712

- 1,573,085

- 1,573,085
116,254,879 30,363,038

11,961,219 35,950,135
500,000 500,000
10,447,965 9,297,454
139,164,063 76,110,627




LOLC Life Assurance Limited
Wates to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2024

13

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IN THE CASH FLOWS STATEMENTS

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Favourahble cash and bank balances
Bank balance
Cash in hand

Cash and bank balances

Unfavourable bank balances
Bank overdraft balance

Short-term investments

Placernent with financial institutions {less than 3 months) { Note 7.2}

Cash and cash equivalent for the statement of cash flows

Met debt reconciliation

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and movements in net debt far each of

the periods presented

Cash and cash equivalents
Borrowings
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2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
577,146,845 401,541,830
75,000 75,000
BRT 221,845 401,616,830

(21,005,6456)

1,178,793,347

(38,368,453)

757,378,600

1,735,008,546 1,120,626,977
2024 2023
Rs. Rs.

1,735,008,546

1,120,626,977

Interest bearing borrowings (136,126,530) {141,634,769)
Lease |iabilities {1,456,354} (87,842,907)
Met cash 1,597,425,662 £91,149,301
Cash and cash equivalents 1,735,008,546 1,120,626,977
Gross debt — fixed interest rates {137,582, 884) (229,477,676}
Met cash 1,597,435,662 891,149,301

Liability from financing activities Assets Total

Interest Leass liabilities Cash and cash

bearing equivalents

borrowings
Net debt as at 1 January 2023 {150,854,072) (118,718,010) 961,978,334 692,406,253
Cash flows - - 158,648,643 158,648,643
Loans abtained from related parties - - -
Initial fair value adjustment (Transferred
to a separate reserve) - . - -
Interest amortised (8,208,414) (15,285,122} - (23,493,536)
Translation gain 17,427,717 - 17,427,317
Remeasurments 21,558,812 - 21,558 832
Lease payments during the year - 24,601,392 - 24,601,392
Met debt as at 31 December 2023 (141,634,763) (87,842,908} 1,120,626,977 891,149,301
Cash flows - 614,381,569 614,381,569
Loans obtained from related parties . - . ;
Interest amortised (8,098,563) (290,272} {8,388,835)
Translation gain 13,606,802 - 13,606,802
Remeasurments - 79,917,151 79,917,151
Lease payments during the year - 8,354,815 - 8,394,815
Net debt as at 31 December 2024 [135,126,530) 178,786 1,735,008,546 1, 599 060,802

;h l‘g

ﬁ
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LOLE Life Assurance Limited
Motles to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2024

14 STATED CAPITAL 2024 2023
No. of shares Rs. Mo, of shares Rs,
14.1 Fully paid ordinary shares 135,000,000 1,350,000,000 135,000,000 1,350,000,000
2024 2023
14.2  Fully paid ordinary shares No. of shares Rs. No. of shares Rs.
Balance at beginning of the year 135,000,000 1,350,000,000 135,000,000 1, 350,000,000
Shares issued during the year (Note 14.2.1) — - - - -
Balance at end of the year 135,000,000 1,350,000,000 135,000,000 1,350,000,000

14.2.1  The holders of ardinary shares are entitled o recejve dividends asdectared from time to time and are entitled to one vote
per share at meetings of the Company.

15 CAPITAL RESERVES

15.1 Restricted regulatory reserve

The Insurance Regulatory Commission of Sri Lanka {IRCSL) has icsued a Direction No 16 on 20 March 2018 on “Identification
and Treatment of One-off Surplus® and has instructed all Life Insurance Companies to comply with the new direction, Based
on the puideline, Life Insurance Companies are allowed to transfer One-off surplus attributable to Policyholder Mon-
Participating Fund to Shareholder Fund as at the reporting year ended 31 December 2017, The transfer has been presented
a5 a separate reserve in the Statement of Financial Position as “Restricted Regulatory Reserve” under Equity in accordance
with the direction 16,

15.2  Available for sale reserve
This represents the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets until the investments are
derecognized or impaired.

15.3 Other reserves

Other reserve comprises of the day 01 fair value gain arising on the initial recognition of the refated party foan obtained at a
favourable interest rate.
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LOLC Life Assurance Limited
Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2024

Campany
17 INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS 2024 2023

Rs. Rs.

Amount payable within one year - -
Amaunt payable after one year 136,126,530 141,634,765
136,126,530 141,634,769

Maovements of interest bearing loans and borrowings

Balance at the beginning of the year 141,634,769 150,854,072
Interest amartized 8,098 563 8,208,414
Translation [gain] / loss (13,606,802)  (17,427,717)
Balance at the end of the year 136,126,530 141,634,768

Details of related party loans included In interest bearing loans and borrowings

Lender Relationship Interest rate Currency Repayment Terms  Security 024 2023
LOLC Globa! 2.50% uUsD 05 Years from the Unsecured 136,126,530 141,634, /649
S Subsidiary of
Private Limited : dato of
ultimate

disbursemesnt 136,126,530 141,634,769




LOLE Life Assurance Limited
Motes ta the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2024

18

18.1

18.2
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
Defined benefit lability
Defined henefit lakilivy (18.2) 20,942,057 20,202,528
20,942,057 20,292,528
Changes in the defined benefit liabilities are as follows:
Defined benefit obligation as of 01 January 20,2893 538 22,228,004
Amounts recagnised in profit or loss
Current service cast B, 6RE 859 5,816,390
interest costs 238,028 3,556,480
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Actuarial gain floss [2,954,256) 206,656
Gratuity payment [5,723,102) 1 1,515,00 2]
Defined benefit Lability as of 31 December 20,942,057 20,292,528
Key assumptions used in the above valuation are as follows:
Discount rate 12.00% 13.00%
Future salary increases 10.00% 11.00%
Retirement age &0 Years B0 Years

An actuarial valuation for the gratuity lisbility was carried out as at 31st December 2024, by Mr. Piyal 5. Gupathilake who is a
Chartered Actuary. The valuation method used by the actuaries to value the fund is the "Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost
Methad” recammended by LKAS. 19 an Emplayee Benefit.

Sensitivity analysis on discounting rate and salary increment rate to Statement of Financial Pasition and Comprehensive Income,

Tmpact to Financial Impact Lo
Position-Incrementf Comprehensive
Rate change % [Reduction) of Incomes

Assumption Liability Chargedf{Reversal] |
Fimancial year 2024
Discount rate 1+ (1,322,480) (1,322,480)
Discount rate 1- 1,509,346 1,509,345
Salary increment rate 14+ 1,493,204 1,483,204
Salary increment rate 1- {1,331,397) {1,331,397)
Financial year 2023
Discaunt rate 1+ (1,621,030) (1,621,030)
Discount rate 1- 1,886,369 1,886,369
Salary incremant rate 1+ 1,874,563 1,874,563
Salany increment rate 1- (1,638,199) (1,559,381}

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice,
this is unlikely to occur, and changes In some of the assumptions may be correfated. When calculating the sensitivity of the
defined benefit ohligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation
calculated with the prajected unit eredit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the
defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumplions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.
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18 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS [Contd...)

18.5 An undiscounted maturity analysis of gratuity liability is given below

1-2 years
3-5 years
Over 5 years

19 REINSURANCE CREDITORS

Foreign reinsurers

20 AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES
LOLE Heldings PLC Ultimate Parent
LOLC General Insurance PLC Other Refated Company
LOLE Finance PLC Other Related Company
LOLEC Technology Services Private Limited Other Related Company
LOLC Corporate Services Limited Other Related Company
21 OTHER LIABILITIES

Other financial liabilities (21.1)
Hon-financial liabilities (21.2)

21.1 Other financial liabilities
Agency commission payahle
Accrued expenses
Accounts payable
Other creditars (21.1.1)

21.1.1  Other creditors {21.1.1)
Prevision for Accrued Expenses
Intercompany Interest Payable
Wakala Fee Payable
Pravision for Bonus

21.2 Non-financial liabilities
Policy helders advance payments
Benevalent loan
Stamp duty payable
EPF and ETF payable
PAYE tax payable
Withholding tax payable
Other accrued expenses
Crop Insurance Levy
Unidentified depasits
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2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
5,655,625 3,376,246
10,882,401 11,633,656
55,229,240 46,460,754
71,767,266 61,470,656
2024 2023
Es, Rs.

235,176,808

117,563,378

235,176,808 117,563,378
2024 2023
Rs. Fis.
52,281,085 134,655,715
- 10,587,701
1,750,503 2,412,428
9,386,586 7,660,081
245,000 245 000
63,663,174 155,960,925
2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
538,033,377 371,352,020
512,605,988 485,551,212
1,050,639,365 856,903,232

171,338,206 125,113,852
38,256,355 39,489,118
173,361,875 178,585,247
155,076,541 28,163,803
538,033,377 371,352,020
76,605,114 17,335,467
25,004,893 10,308,079
367,243 530,256
53,099,691 c
155,076,941 28,163,803
395,655,813 409,256,565
500,000 500,000
28,913 31,260
5,911 405 4,198,647
3,873871 1,461,654
1,819,693 985,558
13,812,417 3,500,000
3,922,219 5,811,973
7,041,657 59,804,155
512,605,988 485,551,212
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22

23

231

23.2

233

29

25

26

NET WRITTEN PREMILM

Gross premiums on insurance conlracts

Long term insurance
Life Takaful

Total gross premiums

Premiums ceded to reinsurers on insurance contracts

Life Insurance
Total premiums ceded to refnsurers

Total net premiums

IMVESTMENT INCOME

Available-for-sale financial assets
Interest income Treasury Bonds
Interest incame Treasury Bills

Loans and Receivables
Repurchase agreements

Debentures
Commercial papers
Fined deposit

Asstes back Securities

Fair value through profit or loss

Fair value pains on invesment in unit trusts

Total investment income

FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME

Policy fees

Tatal fees and commission incame

OTHER INCOME

interest income an paficy leans
Interest income on saving deposits
Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets
Foreign exchange gain

Sundry income

NET BENEFITS AND CLAIMS

Life insurance contracts

Total gross benefits and claims paid
Claims ceded to reinsurers

Life insurance contracts

Total claims ceded to reinsurers
Met benefits and claims

2024
Rs.

B,116,459 502
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2023
Rs.

5, 562,010,085

- 43,233,278 !3.515,9&
B,159,732,780 5,575,626,060
o _28?,393,{&?'} 310,638,032
_ 282,300,072 310,636,032
7,877,432,108 5,264,990,028
2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
1,329,060,767 1,003,109,314
3,:_15-&,?5[!1 14,521,600
1,332,225,51¢ 1,018,030,914
21,661,606 A9 702,639
224,484,796 746,904,616
414,567,762 350,159,450
48,683,762 56, 569,734
3,849,315 5,000,000
714,226,241 Th8 336,439
87,242,335 79,384,193
87,242,335 79,384,193
2,138,694,093 1,865,751,545
2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
2,321,173 6,365,501
2,321,173 6,365,501
2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
21,028,088 20,083,156
1,250,796 2,021,976
4,000,000 43,454
10,448,694 15,179,092
70,065,583 10,878,735
106,793,161 48,206,417
024 2023
Rs. Rs.
3,241,581,938 2,700,016,071
3,241,581,938 2,700,016,071
77,597,393 172,753,606
77,597,393 172,753,606
3,163,984,545 2,527,262,465
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21

28

28.1

29

30

ACQUISITION COSTS

Coammissian expenses for insurance cantracls

OTHER OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Staff expenses (28.1)

Adminlstration and establishment expenses
Selling expanses

Depreciation & amartization

Depreciation right of use the assets

Foreign exchange loss

Other expenses

Staff Expenses

Salaries and bonus

Contribution to defined contribution plans - EFF & ETF
Staff welfare

Staff training

Gratuity

FINAMNCE COST

Interest expense on [ease liabilities
Other interest expense

FROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Stated after charging,

Auditors' remuneration

Depreciation

Amaortisation of intangible assets

Advertising costs

Irvestment handling and fund mabilization charges
Business promotion

Agency allowance

Crap insurance levy

2024
Rs.
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2023
Hs.

307,586,419

307,586,419

248,654,149
248,654,149

20249 2023
Rs, Rs.
651,704,350 514,584,056
823,525,312 634,205,409
1,054,517,697 652,805,505
10,534,055 12,510,191
3,787,442 11,067,954
106,161,750 10,529,980
2,690,690,650 1,835,704,095
529,335,619 408,155,306
40,585,929 27,711,911
59,965,354 55,342,269
10,600,561 12,857,140
11,216,887 10,451,430
651,704,350 514,584,056
2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
290,272 15,285,123
24,595,317 18,5155}9_2_
24,885,649 33,801,615
2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
3,002,961 2,627,834
9,532,319 17,032,998
5,213,350 f,545,148
23,445,751 13,800,047
09 052,238 67,967,853
353,523,676 388,291,552
212,760,329 126,245,123
[,435,000 13,200,000
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31 TAXATION
311 The Company was lizble for Income tax during the period as follows.
As per Section 67 of Inland Revenue Act, No, 24 of 2017, "the surplus distributed 1o share holders fram the life insurance policy
halders fund as certified by the Appointed Actuary functioning within the Regulation of the Insurance Industry Act, No. 43 of 2000;
and the investment income of the share halder fund less any expenses incurred in the production of such income” is liable for
incomoc taxes.
31.2 |ncome tax expense for the year
2024 2023
Note Rs. fs.
Profit before tax 812,935,057 938,975,404
Current incame tax charge farm Sharehalder Profit 31.3 52,346,926
Deferred income Lax
pDeferred tax reversal il.4 90,185,8567 5
Profit after tax 530,402,264 938,975,404
311.3  Taxreconciliation statement
Surplus distributed to share holders from the life insurance policy halders fund * 300,000,000
Investment Income of Shareholder fund 738,948,352 626,037,569
Allowable expenses (54,657,269} (18,459,833
Cost of Bonus (Prafits attributed to palicyhalder) - -
£84,291,083 907,537,736
Utilisation of tax losses for which deferred tax assets previoushy not re cognized (376,467,997) (907,537,736)
Taxable incame 307,823,085 -
Income tax on Shareholder Profit at 30% (2024 - 30%) 92,346,926 -
20249 2023
Rs. Rs.
Surplus distributed to share holders from the life insurance policy halders fund 300,000,000
psseszable income from business - 300,000,000
Agsessable income from investments 703,624,232 607,937,736
Utilisation of tax [osses for which deferced tax assets previously not recegnized (376,467,997} (907,537,736)
Tazahle income 307,823,085 .
Current Income Tax Charge (30%) 92,346,926 -
314 Deferred tax

The Company camputed its inceme tax expanse for the year ended 31 December 2024

in accordance with Section 67 of the Infand

Revenue Act Mo. 24 of 2017, The deferred tax asset that was previously recagnized in 2022 was fully reversed in 2024, fallowing

the complete wtilization of all cumulative tax losses.

Asummary deferred tax assets recognised as at 31 December is as follows

2024 2023

Rs. Rs.
Deferred tax assets recopnized for tax fosses 0,185,867
& summary tax losses available for carry farward is as follows

Rs. Rs.
Cumulative tax losses as at beginning of the year 365,376,651 1,606,943,691
Adjustrnent ta Tax losses 11,091,346 (334,029,304)
set off against taxable profits [176,467,997) (907,537.736)

Tox losses available ta carry farwarded {can be carry forward up to 31 March 25

365,376,651

.‘__l':-"-i'- rarj
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321

33

iaa

34

34.1

HASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is caloufated by dividing the net profit after tax for the year by the walghted average number of ordinary shares
putstanding during the year.

Basic earnings per share with out ane off surplus

2024 2023
Rs. Rs.
Nat profit for the year (30,402,264 93B,975,404
weighted average number of ordinary shares 135,000,000 135,000,000
Basic earnings per share .67 596

COMMITMENTS AND CORTINGENCIES

Commitments and contingencies
There were no material capital commitments which require adjustment to or disctosure in the financial statements as at the re parting date.

Letter of guarantees

Tha Campany has obtained letters of guarantees to the value of Rs. 8,187,500 fram Natioss Trust Bank PLC as at 31.12.2024 for the
purpose of bidding for insurance business.

Litigation filed by the Company/ against the Company

Litigation is a common occurtence in the insurance industry due to the nature of the business undartaken. The Company has farmal
conteols and policies far managing legal claims, Once professional advice has been obtaired and the amount af loss reasonably estimated,
the Campany makes adjustments to account for any adverse effects which the claims may have on its financial standing. There were no
pending litigations against the Company as at 31 December 2024 which would have a material impact on the financial statements,

Assessments on Income Tax

The Company has received Income Tax Assessments from the Department of In‘and Revenue for the years of assessments 2011712,
2013713, 2013/14, 2014/15, 2017/18, 2018/19, 2019/20 & 2020/21 under the Infand Revenus Act, Mo, 10 of 20406,

Commissioner General of Inland Revenue has provided his determination against the Company relating 1o these assessments. Appeals have
been made by the Company against these determinations of the Commissioner General of frland Revenue Lo the Tax Appeal Commissian.
The Company is awaiting the decision of the Tax Appeal Commission.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Details of significant related party disclosures are as follows.

Transactions with the parent company

2024 2023

Company Name Nature of Transaction Rs. Rs.

LOLC Holdings PLC Fund transfers out 438 464,799 791,068,851
Fund transfersin 378,809,084 258,270,883
Interest expense on curfent account 14,696,814 10,308,079
Expenses incurred an behalf of company 547,940,019 484,895 583
Payrments far fixed assets purchase 1,059,522 1,141 789
Current account settlements 669,572 968 413,391 438
Inwestment handling and fund mobilization charges 93,778,029 67,967,853

LOLC Glohal Private Limited Interest expense on forelgn currency loan 8,098,563 8,208,414
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34.2

34.3

34.4

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Contd )

Transactions with affiliste companies

Company Mame Mature of Transaction 2024 2023
Rs. Rs,
LOLE Finance PLC Fund transfers out = -
Fund transfers in 26,063,754 50,274,164
Fxpenses incurred on behalf of Company 64,133,973 94,110,085
Current gocount seltfements 38,332,145 15,615,931
Insurance premium in respect of customers introduced- 576,624,575 296,775,742
Seylan Bank PLC Insurance premium in respect of customers introduced & direct 599, B06, 547 BO7.000,117
Banc assurance fees paid 155,120,344 115,767,492
LOLC Development Finance PLC Insurance presmicm in respect of customers introduced - -

Commercial Leating & Finance PLE Insurance premium in respect of custamaers introduced . -
Cusrent accaunt settlements - .
Fund transfers out .

Fund transfersin g -
LOLE General Insurance PLC Furd transfers out . =
Fund trapsfers in - -
Expenses incurred on behalf of Company 58,065,196 29,994,993
Payments for fixed assets purchase - -
Current account settiements 71,537,671 44,661,018
LOLC Maotars Limited Expenses incurred on behalf of Campany 186,660 180,587
Curfent account settlements - 180,587
LOLC hnal Service i
L'm'l:n:c nplogy Seriicex Privaie fxpenses incurred on behalf of Company 163,881,892 138,842,614
1mi
Current account settlements 162,155,387 142,300,796
LOLC Corporate Services Private
Limited Expenses incurred on behalf of Company 2,940,000 2,940,000
Current account settlements 2,940,000 2,940,000
Brown & Campany PLC Payment of rent 31,678,189 27,156,632

Transactions with key management perional

Key maragament personnel are those persans having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and cantralling the activities of
the entities, directly or indirectly, induding any director {whether executive or athe rwise] of the entity and its parent.

Key management personal compensation 024 2023

Rs. Rs.
Short-term employment benefits 21,451,206.61 18,077,615
Dther transactions 2024 2023

Rs. Rs.

Premiurm of insurance palicies obtained by key management personal - X

The Company carries out transactions in the ordinary course of its business with parties who are defined as refated parties in LKAS 24 -
“Balated Party Disclosures®. The Pricing applicable ta such transactions it based on the assessment of the risk and pricing model of the
Company and is comparable with what is applied to transactions between the Company and its unrelated Custamers, except for the related
party loan obtained during the year at a favourable interest rate.
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35.1

35.2

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INVESTIMENTS

Fair value of financial investments and labilities not carried at fair value
The following descrines the methodologies and assurmptions psed to determine fair values for those financial instruments
which are not already recorded at fair value in the financizl statements [i.e. loans and receivables).

Cash and bank balances, premium receivable, reinsurance roceivable, repurchase agreement, term deposit, reinsurance
creditor, amounts due to related parties, agency cammission payable, other creditors and bank overdraft carrying value
armaounts approximate to the fair values due to the short teem nature of the instruments. Bofrowings from the related partly
approsimate to the fair value as an adjustrent has been made on the favourable interest rate applied.

Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy

The Campany uses the Tollowing hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation
technique:

« Level 1: The fair value of finzncial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded securities) is based on
quoted market prices at the end of the reparting periad. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the
Company is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1

« Leyel 2:The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
markets} is determined using valuation technigues which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as
possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument arg observable, the
instrument is included in level 2,

Level 30 If one or more of the significant inputs s not based on observable market data, the Instrument is included in level 3.
This is the case for unlisted equity securities.

Financidl assets measured using a valuation technique based on assumptions that are supported by prices fram observable
current market transactions are assets for which pricing is obtalned via pricing sErvices.

Leval 1 Level 2 Total
fair value
Rs. Rs. Rs.

As at 31 December 2024
Available-for-sale financial assets
Government securities . 10,749,513,491 10,749,513,491
Trading assets - fair value through profit or loss
Fair value of unit trusts - 646,044,401 646,004,401

- 11,395,557,892 11,395,557,892
As at 31 December 2023
Available-for-sale financial assets
Govarnment securities . 8.874,136,428 8,874,136,428
Trading assets - fair value through profit or loss
Fair value of unit trusts . 4498 884,193 495,884,193

9,373,020,621 9,373,020,621

The inputs used far fair valuation of Level 2 financial investments are based an current market yields.
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35 ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT BY MEASUREMENT BASIS

Firancial Assets

Loans and receivables
Inyeskment secutitiog
Debentures
Commercial papers
Asstes back Securities
Term depasits
Repurchase agreements
Term deposits- Mudharabaha
Pallgyhalder and other [oans
Reinsurance receivables
Premiums receivalie

Amaunts due from related-partles

Other assets
Cash and bank balances

Ayvallable-Tor-sale investment securities

|nvestment securities
Treasury bongs
Treasury bills
Falr value through profit ar loss
Unit trusk
Financial Assets

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Interest bearing borrowings
Amnounts due to related parties
Other liabitities

Feinsurance creditors

Lease lizbllity

Bank cwerdraft

Total Financial Liabilities

AT THE REPORTING DATE

10,743,513,441 827,301,154
: 46,635,274
£46,044,201 £58,888,193
20,217,105,068 15,396,437, 766
136,176,530 323,507,031
63,663,174 63,856,895
538,033,377 348,570,589
235,176,508 138,219,473
1,456,354 118,718,010
11,006,646 20,577,932
945,462,883 813,448,930
37 MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BASED ON THE REMAINING PAATURITIES/REALIZATION OF ASSETS
31.12.2024 31.12.2023

2024
Hs.

2,014 446,963
4,026,130,636

339,262,812
1175,793,34)
119,358,121
105,162,973
5L263,108
407,502,211
2,805,024

577,211,845

Page B4

1023
Rs.

1,955,182,263
1,679,566,373
51,136,964
292,774,650
757,374,600
145,133,564
101,124,144
62,145,588
565,278,748
1,305
1,573,085
401,616,830

Less than 12 More than 12 Earhiire SR Less than 12 Mare than 12 Carrying amount
Manths Months Months Manths

Assets As. Hs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Froperty and equipment . 36,976,642 36,976,642 . 12,183,404 12,185,404
Right-of-use assets . 1,430,748 1,430,748 12,195,037 21,146,930 33,341,968
Intangible assets . 8,031,475 8,031,475 . 12,948 B25 12 94E,825
peferred 12k assets - - . . 00,185,857 90,185,867
Investments in associates . E4,550,000 849,550,000 - 83,550,000 B9,550,000
Inwastrment securitias 6, 261,517.078 12,812,032 803 19,073,545,831 3,302.877.002 10,961,815,955 14,264,693,066
Policyholder and other loans 38,016,483 67,136,496 105,162,979 33,987 E48 67,136,456 101,124,144
Reinsurance receivables 30,054,513 21,208 615 51,263,128 41,114,556 21,025,032 62,149,588
Premiums recesvahle 394,619,759 12,872,452 407,502,111 557,346,684 7,933,064 565,273,743
Amaounts due fram related partie 2,405,024 . 2,405,024 1,305 1,305
Other assels 139,164,063 - 139,164,063 77,683,712 . 77,683,712
Cash & bank balances 577,211,845 - 577,211,845 401,616,830 . 401,616,830
Tolal assets 7,443,018,766 13,045,239,231 20,992,257,956 4,426,812,834 11,283,931,613 15,710,764,457

liabilities -

5. 736,983,917 7,584, 546,263 13,321,536,180 1,945,047 641 7,584, 546,263 6,529, 588.004
ngs . 136,126,530 136,116,530 = 141,634, T3 141,634,769
/ : 1,456,354 1,456,154 25,682 947 £2,159,961 E7,842.908
I:niga tigns = 20,942,057 20,942,057 = 20,292,524 10,292,518
[E tars 215,176,808 . 135,176,508 117,563,378 . 117,563,378
gwene to related parties £3,663,174 : 63,663,174 155,960,925 155,960,925
Otier liabilities 1,050,639 365 - 1,050,639,355 856,903,232 = B5E,903,232
Incame tas liability 41,629,375 - 41,619,375 1,B96,345 - 1,836,349
Rank overdraft 11,006 646 - 21,006,645 38,358,453 - 1B, 368,453
Total liabifities 7,149,105,285 7,743.071,204 14,892,176, 489 3.141,417,925 7.B0E,633,521 10,950,051, 4496
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38.1

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
Insurance risk

The principal risk the Company faces under insurance cantracts 15 that the actual dlaims and benefit payments or the timing thereaf,
may differ fram expectations, This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid and the subsequent
development of long-term claims, Therefare, the objective of the Company is to ensure that sufficient reserves are available to cover
these lizbilities.

The risk exposure is mitipated by diversification across a large partfolio of insurance contracts and peographical areas, The variability af
risks is also improved by careful selection and implementatian of underwriting guidelines, as well as the use of reinsurance

Mature and extent of risks arising from insurance contracts

Objectives, policles and processes for managing risks arising frem insurance contracts

The Company willingly assume the risks of other organisations as the Company's prime value creation activity. This is the core of the
insurance business and there is no perfect way of measuring the potential impact on insured risk, Far non life insurance business, the
mast significant risks arise frem climate changes, natural disasters and terrorist activities.

The ahove risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a lasge portfolio of insurance contracts and geographical areas. The
Campany’s risk management framework focuses on strategic risk, assumed risks and the potential risks, The Company identifies and
categorises risks in terms of their source, their impact an the Campany and preferred strategies for dealing with them, The Company
follows an integrated approach for risk management by considering the size, nature and complexity of the business. It i a continuous
pracess af scrutinizing the internal and external environment to identify elements which may have an impact an the company
achieving its" abjectives.

Method vsed to manage risks

Risk appelite and risk tolerance

The Company has made a steategic decision to maintain a risk appetite moderately above the average of the insurance markel, since it
allows the best potential far creating shareholder value at an acceptable risk level The Company manages the valatility and potential
downward risk through diversification,

Risk management culture

Individuals in the Company are well aware af the risk that they are bringing into the Company with their actions. It ean be pricing,
reserving, underwriting and investment, The concepl of the risk is well spread across the Company. The sirang governance steucture
within the Company is used as a tool to achieve this target.

Identification of shock losses

There are three areas of risk which have the potential to materially damage econemic value that the Company identified at present as
having the greatest potential for shack losses. They are catastrophe, reserving and investment risk, The Company manage the risk of
shock losses by setting limits an the tolerance for specific risks and on the amount of capital that the Company is willing to expose.

The Company considers insurance risk to be a combination of the fallowing components:

a}. Product design Risk

b). Underwriting Risk

¢). Claims Risk

a). Product design risk

Life Insurance contracts offered by the Company include endowment plans, decreasing term assurance, mortgage protection plan,

completion of three years,

W

omhu . d
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RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK {Contd...)

The main risks that the Company is exposed to, under product design risk are as follows:

adortality risk  |Risk of loss arising due to policyhalders’ death experience helng different fram Exper_'led

Morbidity risk  [Risk of loss arising due to pallcvhnlders health experience being different from expected

Investrment roturfRisk of loss arising from actual returns I}EII'IE different fram e:pected

Expense risk  |Risk of loss arising from the expense experience being different from expected
Policyholder Risk of loss arising due to p-allrl,h{}ldq’_rs experiences {lapses and surrenders) being different from
decision risk expected

These risks do not vary significantly in relation to the location and type af risk insured by the Company.
b). Underwriting risk

The Company’s underwriting stralegy is designed to ensure that risks are well diversified in terms of the type of risk and the level of
insured benefits. This is largely achleved through prudent underwriting, the use of medical screening in ofder 1o ensure that pricing
takes account of current health conditions and family medical history as well as detalled claims handling procedures, Undenariting
limits are in place to enforce appropriate risk seleclian criteria, For example, the Campany has the right not to renew individual
palicies, it can impose differant terms at revivals and it has the right to reject the payment of fraudulent efaims.

The Company Turther enfarces a policy of actively managing and promptly pursuing claims, in arder to reduce its exposure o
unpredictable future developments that can negatively impact the Company.

Far contracts for which death or disability is the insured rick, the significant factars that could increase the overall frequency of claims
are epidemics, widespread changes in lifestyle and natural disasters, resulting in earlier or more claims than expected. The Company
limits exposure on any single life by way of retention limits agreed with the reinsurers.

Life underwriting risk managerment

separate life underwriting division headed by a well qualified management alang with a trained staff is in placed in order to closely
monitar the life undenwriting functions of the Company.

Pricing decisions of the products are reviewed and guided by qualified actuary to convenience the management to make accurate
pricing decisions.

Reinsurers’ advices are obtained before deciding the terms and conditions of the products in order to assist the proper pricing strategies.
The Compary carefully analyse the current health condition and the family medical history of the insurar before deciding the premiums.

c}. Claims risk

Risk arises due to the possikility that the frequency of claims arising from Life insurance contracts exceeds the expected level when
pricing the products.

same of the specific actions by the Company to mitigate the claims risks are shown below

d). Concentration risk

Based on the Company's operation structure, there is no significant concentratian risk.
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RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK [Contd...)

). Sensitivity analysls

The following tables present the sensitivity of the value of insurance lighilities ta movements in the assumplions used in tha
estimation of insurance liatilities, holding all other variables constant,

Increase in liability (Rs) Decrease in equity and profit
before tax |Rs)

Type of risk Explanation Stress applied 2024 2023 2024 2023

Rizk of loss arising due to

palicyholders’ death Martality fram best

expsrisnce being estimate [BE} to 85.985.522 80,577,127 (85,985,522) (82,527,122
different from expected, |peyqps

ceteris paribus all other

Mortality risk

parameters. 4
Risk af loss arising due to
T palicyhalders’ health harbidity from BE ;
% 4 4 34,4834 34,4834
Maorbidity risk experiance being 16 BE+20% 3,165,415 (AB3 a8 43,169,415} [34,483,482)

different from expected.

Risk of loss arising from | Yield curve overall
attual returns being 100 BP down (1% 2729 881,440 196 821,349 (229,881, 440) {196,821,345)
different from expected.  jdown)

Investment
return risk

Risk of loss arising from
tha exponse experience  [Expenses fram BE
being different frem ta BE+10%

expected.

Ewpense risk 158,537,527 146,776,603 {158,537,527) (145,776,605)

Risk of loss arising due to
palicyholders'
experiences [fapses and
surrenders) being

Lapses fram BE to
BE+20%

Palicyholder

s viar itk 43,155,734 {14, 885,900) [43,155,734) 14,885,900

different from expected.

The above analyses 2re based on a change in an assumplion while halding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to
accur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated - for example, changes in lapses
and future mortality.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analys's did not change compared to the prior period.

Life claims risk management

* Life fund valuation Is carried out by a quatified independent actuarial valuer on regular basis,

* Claims are reserved immediately at the intimation or on the availability of information of the death orinjury of an insured.
injury af an insured.

* Financial authority limits are set based on the claim limits.

Financial risk

The Company has exposure to the following risks from financial instruments:

| Credit risk

i Liquidity risk

il Market risk

iw Concentratian risk

pracesses far measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s management of capital.




Page 68

LOLC Life Assurance Limited
Notos to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2024

8

38.2

i)

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK [Contd...}
Risk management framework

The board of directars of the company has overall responsihility for the establishment and oversight of the Campany's risk
management framework:

The Company's risk management policies are established 1o identify and analyse the risks faced by the Campany, to set appropriate risk
limits snd cantrals, and ta monritor fisks and adherence to hmils. Risk manzgement policies and systems are reviewed regularly ta
reflect changes in market conditions, products and services effered. The Company, through its training and management standards and
procedures, aims to develop & disciplined and constructive control environment, in which all emplayees uniderstand their roles and
chligations.

The Board is respansible far manitaring comipliance with the Campany’s risk management policies and procedures. The Buard s
assisted in these functions by Internal Audit and the Board Audit Committee. Internal Audit underiskes both regular and ad-hoc
reviews of risk management contrals and procedures, the results of which are reparted to the Beard.

Financial risk

The Enterprise Risk Management Committee which consists of senior management was formed to stremgthen the risk management
process. Furthermare, the company’s risks are assessed and monitered at the group leve! by the Integrated Risk Management
Comrittee of its ultimate parent company, LOLC Holdings PLC.

Credit risk

Cradit risk s the risk of financial loss to the Company if @ customer or counterparty to a financlal instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations in accordance with agreed terms and arises principally fram the Company's premium receivables, re-insurance
receivables, investment debt securities and deposits in commercial banks such as time depasits, demand depasits.

Management of credit risk

The Company has developed a credit policy approved by the Board and creditis granted based on the same for the palicyholders, The
Campany has taken the "Fremium Warranty Clause” into cansideration when developing the afarementioned credit policy. As a result
ol rigour follow up of eutstanding premiums, the policies which are not settled within the approved credit peripds are cancelled on
regular basis, The Company checks the status of the cutstanding premium before settling claims to reduce the credit risk. The Company
has implemented an Impairment review for premium receivables periodically and provide far the same based on the results.

Cradit risk with regards to re-insurance receivables is mitigated by selecting the re-insurers with higher credit ratings and reviewing
their ratings periodically.

The Company evaluates the credit rating of the respective investee and/or respective issue prior to the investment decision is made.
Furthermore, the Company focuses on tolerable levels cancentration risk and portfolio manitering in line with Company's risk appetite.
A stringent process is in place to comply with the single investment exposure limits. prescribed by the regulator, the Insurance
Regulatory Commission of Sri Lanka,
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L) Liguidity risk

Page 70

Liguidity rigic is the risk that the Company will encounter d-ficulty in meeting obl gations essorated with (s finangial Fazlities that ase settled by delivenng cash or

anothar financial assel

Maragement of IFquidil'.' risk

The Company's approach 10 mansging hgulday is ta encure that funds avai'able ara adequate 1o meet claim payments to ils poboyhalders and b eagure aperational
expanses to ba paid when they are dus

Thie main sources of the Company's fund ng are capilal and grods weittes gremiom. The Company a'so maintaing @ portfolo of read ly marsetab’e secunities to furthar
strengthen its liquidty position. Tre invesiment durations are doessified depending on the cash Tow needs of the Company and tha maturity. periods are regu'arly

seviewed. Cash flow analysis s done prior 1oinvestments are made

The Campany's treaty 2greements wth re-nsurers contaii clauses permitt ng the immed ate drew down of funds to meet c'aim payments should cla m events excesd

acedalnagread sire.

Exposure fo Nguldity risk

Tre Company manitors the

purchased. The Company a'so menitors matusity prafile of its ausets and |labil itles,

Katurity profile of investrments based on remain'ng maturity is given below.

&5 at 31 December 2024

Cashand cath equiva’ents

Available-for-sale Invesiment securities

Government seLutities
Loans and receivables
Repurchase agresments
Debeatures
Commescial papers
Asstes back Secunties
Term depost
Paficyhaolder and other laats
Re-nsurance assols
Premium recaivablas
Aefundable depotits

Fimancial Liabilities
interest bearing barrowings
Amounts due to related
partes

Reinsurance cred toss
Other firancal liabilities
Lease babil ties

Bank averdraft

Ag at 31 December 2023

Cash and cash equivalants

liguidity pos'tion ol the Company W0 asses-fusding requirements Ligu'd assets ncfude cash avd short lerm investments znd biils

Available-for-sale Investmant securities

GovErmment securities
Loans and recefvables
Repurthase Agregments

Term deposit

Pa'icyholder and otherfoang

0-6 mamhs | 7-12 mon'lh | 1-3 years 3-5 years || ver 05 years ” Total
el — M) L Hs. Hs. [itH

571 331 EAS * = 533371 EAS
E32,018,000 21,580,903 3,435,820,214 3,4E3,725,954 2.971,4348,420 10,745,513,451
1,178,793,347 . . . 1,178,793,347
- 1612,131,917 353,B41,080 AE, 464,043 2,014,437 956
1,418,995,654 2,405,445 181 201,691,781 4.026,130,£26
115,358,241 253,292,408 B5,9585,404 . . 458,621,052
40,153,763 14,428,003 19,458,764 23,043,289 7,933,140 105,162,573
26,125,932 3,928,531 11,308,655 9,898,560 . 51,763,118
317,785,761 76,B43 099 124471711 425,281 A0F,502,211
4,511,352,573  2,775,502,074 5,.382,B864,507 3,B70,978,580 3,027,948,503 19,568,646,637
- 135,126,530 136,126,530
F3,663174 - 63,663,174
235,176,608 435,176,808
538,033,377 % ‘ 5 538,033,377
373,611 407,427 675,316 - 1,456,354
21,006,646 - 21,006,645
B58,253,616 407,427 675,316 136,126,530 . 555,462 B89

0-6 months 712 months 1-Z years 3-5 years n " Total

1]

401,616,330 i - 401,616,830
56,676,250 - 1,176,638,000 7.950,240,412 4, 762,750,000 13,986,304 62
757,378,600 2 . - ¥ 757,378,600
135,363,752 379,150,625 219,433,750 2,109,053,750 . 2,543,003,377
1212533213 B78,714,747 1,841,267,480
. - 55,000,000 . - 55,000,000
255,475,890 141,540,E07 - - - 397,016,697
17,260,918 16,736,715 23,278,042 39,B12,273 4,045,161 101,124,144
35,520,501 5,603,655 5,388,29% 15,636,713 - 62,149,588
AT 880,048 79,466,636 B, 704,377 1,228,687 - 565,279,748
- - 1,573,085 - 1,573,045
3,439,707,913  1,201,222,689 1,486,447 468 10,117,544,840 4,766,796, 181 21,011,714,191
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As at 31 December 2023

0-f months 7-12 months 17 years 1.5 years Total

Rs. s, _u_ Rs. lt Iltlls. “ Oyt B _“_ Rs. j

Fimangiat Liabllities

Imlerest bearing barrowings - 163,761,750 - 163,761,750

Amaunts due to related

parties 155,960,525 . = - - 155,960,925

Reinsurance credilors. 117,563,374 . - - - 117,563,378

Oihar freacia’ labilities 371,352,020 - - . - a71,352,020

Lease lakilities 12,470,930 18,830,616 35,098,077 32,580,614 - 109,039,339

Rank overdraft 38,368,451 - ) S - - 33,368,453
T 701,715,706 18,590,616 39,095,977 196,342,564 - 656,045,865

[ii7] Market risk

Thia refers 1o the rsk of laiing value of investments due to advase mOvEMERE |7 a5e1s prices and poss bliny for an indedtonto exparignde 108
sffect the overall performance of the financia! markets This principally comprisas of interest rate risk and price rises

tanagemant of matket risk

Tha Company makes investment decsions based on the fusdamenta's rather thas onspe

a regular bails and the overall investment portialia is revewed by the Bzard ona manthly

Sonsitivity analyss - interest rate risk

The sensitivity analysls for interestrate risk illuitrates how enanges in the fair value or futuse cash flows of 2 financali
market interest rates at 1he reporting date. The aralys's is based on the assumption that allother
dareeasing by 100 bag's paints, The mathods and tyzes of assumptions wsed in prepanng the sensitivity

An increase in 100 basis painis in interest ¥ elds wou'd resu't iv a loss for the perind of AS437 m
ylaids would result in & gain for tne period of Re437 mllion 12023 A% 249Kn], These balances wou

sulatve motive. The bond investment portfofio
bass Tre interest rate risk 5 managed through fxed rated investment

wariab'es a%e held constadl with market Int
anatysis did ot change compares ta tha priar period.

Tha expatuta of the Company's band investmenl portfolio 1o Interast rate changes at the end of 1he repasting period are as foliows:

ey due 1o fpctors that

i maritared by the Board en

rstrument will luctuate because of changes in
erait rates increas ngd

lga (2073: s 249MR). A decrease in 100 basis points in intarest
1d bedirectiy recagrized in equity.

1024 % of 1o1al investment 1023 % of tatal investment
partlello portfalio
tompany's band pertfalio
tAaturity dates
Less than 1 year BS54 478503 4% 43,101,250 L
1-Syaars 6,923,550,163 6% 9,126,B7E,412 B4
Cver 5 years 7,971,484,420 16% 4,762,750,000 334
10,745,513,451 SEN 13,932,729,662 8EW

Sensitlvity analysis - price risk

The sensitty analysis for prica risk llustrales haw changes in the fa'r value of equity secutives wi

[iv] Concentration risk

This rafers to the risk thal the Comaany will suffer from tack of diversification, Investing too heavly (none industry, ene geo

Management of concentration risk

To comply with the risk to'erance and aapetite of the Company 2 significant amaunt of tata’ iavesiments are made in gove
careful analys's is dene before invasting in equity investments, A stringent process
{nsurance Regulatory Commission of 50 Lanka. Funltermare the Board reviews the company'sinvestmants

The compasiton of the Company’s invasiments as a1 31 Decernber 2024 and 31 Decembar 2023 are given in the note numger &,

{v] Forelgncurrency risk

This refars ta the risx that the fair va'ue or future cash fiows of a financial instrume

Sensillvity analysis — forelgn curreéncy risk

The senstiv by anatysis for foseign curmre sy risk illustzates Bow changes in the fair value af financal ingtruments will fuctuale baca

rates at tne seporting date

A strenghtening of 10% of the USD zganat the LKA wou'd resuit in @ loss for the per
against tne LKA wou'd resu'tina gain far 1he pariad of Rs.8.60 million (2023 - fs. 14,16 millian),

At will luctuate because of changes in foreign eichange rales.

| fluctuste beeausa of changes in market prices 2t the reparting date.

Eraghic area or pne type of sacurity.

srment securitios which are risk free. A
{g in place to comply with the sing'e Inveslment exgosure Jim ts prescribed by the
sortfolio oa a monthly bas's.

wae of changes in fose gn exchange

od of Fie BEQ million (2023 - A5.14 16 mi'lan). A weakenng of 10% of the USD
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The Camoany s eaposute Lo fareign currency rife al phie gnd ol the reporting period, gxpressed in Az, was a5 fol ows

P 1024 i 2023
TR e e I LKA I Total

Foreign CurrEncy (0ans 136,176,530 136,126,530 150,854,072 150,854,072

136,126,530 136,176,530 150,858,072 150,858,072

RISK MANAGEMENT FRANEWORE (Cantd.)
Capital management
The Company'§ oojeciives when ManAgMg capital, which consists of taia’ equity on the statement of finanzial pastion, a7e!

To cormpy with the insurasie capital requitements required by the regulator, he Insurase Fegulatory Commission of & Lana.

To safeguard the Campany'sas [y to continui 35 3 ROING CORLEIN 50 that it can continus 1o previde retuns far shareholdarss and benefits
far other stakeholders; and

1o prow e adaquate fetums 1o gF arehsiders by pricing ingurante contracts commensurate with e levelof rsk

Tha imsurance Regulatory Commisson of Sri Lanka specifies (ke minimum anount and slvency ratia (a1 must be maintanied, based o the Regu'ation of Insurance

Jadustey Act, Nodd af 2000 and other applcable faws and regulalinng EOVRIAiNg the infurancs indugtey. Tneminimum capital requ rements appica’e to tha
Campany s Rs 500,000,000, The Company has camplied with all of the eaternaly imposed ca pital requirements and soivency ralio requiremants 1o wihich it s subject.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPDRTING DATE

Fg Cireamnstances have arnsen $nce the siaternent of financia’ posivion date which reguires ad, sstments 1 or d srlosures in the finangia statements.
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